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ABOUT US

ABOUT US

THE BEE AT A GLANCE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF THE COMPANY

ABOUT THE BEE
We are an investment company founded in 1974 and listed on
the Development and Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
of Mauritius. We are a subsidiary of IBL Ltd, the leading
conglomerate in Mauritius. We hold and manage a diversified
portfolio of investments spanning various asset classes, from
listed and unlisted equities to fixed-income investments.
In 2016, we embarked on a bold strategy to specialise in the
THEfocus
BEE on
private equity investment sphere, with a primary
supporting local SMEs and new ventures. We EQUITY
partner with
PARTNERS
talented entrepreneurs to help build sustainable
business
ventures at various stages of development, from LTD
start up to
scale up. We strive to create value by providing our investee
companies with governance support, industry expertise,
strategic guidance, financial skills and access to our extensive
business networks. Our ultimate goal is to invest with impact,
fostering entrepreneurship
SUBSIDIARYin Mauritius whilst generating
superior risk-adjusted returns for our Shareholders.

Our subsidiary

Rs 117.4M
Group Revenue
(2017: Rs 101.0M)

Net Asset Value
Per Share
(2017: Rs 60.88)

2018

11%
8%
10%

Rs 590M
71%

OTHER INVESTMENTS

Rs 25.5M

Haute Rive

FAST

+9%
Rs 66.34

TOTAL ASSETS

We own 80.53% of Flacq
Associated Stonemasters Ltd (“FAST”),
Azuri Hotel Ltd
80.53%
20.97%
a company involved in the production and sale of aggregates
and blocks. A key asset in our investment portfolio, FAST
operates a stone crushing plant near Bel Air, in the eastern
shore of Mauritius. In the year ended 30 June 2018, FAST
generated a turnover of Rs 103.9M and net profits of Rs 14.9M.

PL Resort Ltd
40.00%

Others

Group Profit
attributable to the Parent
(2017: Rs 44,5M)

+46%
Rs 35.00

Closing Share Price
(2017: Rs 24.00)

Associate

Investment portfolio
Investment property
Receivables & others
Cash & cash equivalents

PORTFOLIO BY ASSET CLASS
2018

GROUP STRUCTURE

Rs 308.7M

THE BEE EQUITY PARTNERS LTD

SUBSIDIARY

FAST

80.53%

Market Capitalisation
(2017: Rs 211.7M)
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33%
Rs 418M

OTHER INVESTMENTS

Haute Rive
Azuri Hotel Ltd
20.97%

PL Resort Ltd
40.00%

Others

Rs 0.66

Dividend Per Share
(2017: Nil)
Associates

4

32%

35%

Listed equity
Unlisted equity
Fixed income
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DIRECTORS’
PROFILES

JEAN-CLAUDE BÉGA (Mr.)

JAN BOULLÉ (Mr.)

OLIVIER FAYOLLE (Mr.)

MADHUKAR GUJADHUR (Mr.)

SATTAR JACKARIA (Mr.)

DENIS-CLAUDE PILOT (Mr.)

NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

APPOINTED ON:

APPOINTED ON:

APPOINTED ON:

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

16 January 2016 on the Board
13 February 2017 as Chairman
10 February 2017 as Member of the
Investment Committee

27 July 2001

9 May 2016

APPOINTED ON:

28 August 2018

Resident of Mauritius

QUALIFICATION:
Jean-Claude Béga is a Fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

Resident of Mauritius

Born in 1963, Jean-Claude started his
career in 1980 by spending 7 years
as external auditor and then moved
to a sugar group to perform various
functions within accounting and finance
before joining GML in 1997 as Finance
Manager. He is currently the Group
Head of Financial Services and Business
Development of IBL Ltd and has also
been appointed as Executive Director of
that company in August 2018.

BOARD MEMBERSHIPS AND
AFFILIATIONS:
• AfrAsia Bank Limited
• AfrAsia Capital Management Ltd
• Alteo Limited
• Anahita Estates Limited
• Anahita Residences & Villas Limited
• Anglo African Investments Ltd
• Camp Investment Company Limited
• DTOS Ltd
• IBL Ltd
• Knights & Johns Management Ltd
• Lux Island Resorts Ltd
• Mauritian Eagle Insurance Company Ltd
• Phoenix Beverages Limited
• Phoenix Investment Company Limited
• The Bee Equity Partners Ltd
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Resident of Mauritius

Resident of Mauritius

Resident of Mauritius

APPOINTED ON:

APPOINTED ON:

13 December 2017

QUALIFICATION:

QUALIFICATION:

Jan Boullé is qualified as an « Ingénieur
Statisticien Economiste » (France)
and holds a « Diplôme de 3ème Cycle
en Sciences Economiques » from
Université Laval (Canada).

Born in 1979, he holds a MSc in
International Financial Analysis from the
University of Lille II, France.

QUALIFICATION:

PROFESSIONAL JOURNEY:

PROFESSIONAL JOURNEY:

Before joining The Bee Equity Partners Ltd
in April 2016, he worked as a Senior
Financial Analyst at Octo Finances, a
fixed-income securities brokerage firm
based in Paris, France. He is a member
of the board of various investee
companies of The Bee Equity
Partners Ltd.

From September 1988 to March 2006
Mr. Madhukar Gujadhur was the
Financial Controller of Sun Resorts Ltd.
From April 2006 to March 2014 he was
the Director of Finance - O&O Royal
Mirage Hotel (Dubai) owned by
Ruler of Dubai.

PROFESSIONAL JOURNEY:
PROFESSIONAL JOURNEY:

Resident of Mauritius

He has been employed by the
Constance Group from 1984 to 2016
and occupied various executive
positions and directorships. His latest
position at Constance being Group
Head of Projects and Development.
He has been appointed as the
Non-Executive Chairman of IBL Ltd on
1 July 2016, the ultimate holding
company of The Bee Equity Partners Ltd.

BOARD MEMBERSHIPS AND
AFFILIATIONS:
• Alteo Agri Ltd
• Alteo Limited
• Bloomage Ltd
• BlueLife Limited
• Camp Investment Company Limited
• GML Ineo Ltée
• IBL Ltd
• Lux Island Resorts Ltd
• Mon Loisir Ltée
• Phoenix Beverages Limited
• Phoenix Investment Company Limited
• Pick and Buy Ltd
• The Bee Equity Partners Ltd
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BOARD MEMBERSHIPS AND
AFFILIATIONS:
• The Bee Equity Partners Ltd

13 December 2017

QUALIFICATION:
Born in March 1954, Mr. Gujadhur was
admitted as Member of ACCA in 1982.

Since April 2014 to date, Mr. Gujadhur
is the Financial Controller of Le Chaland
Resort Village Ltd.

BOARD MEMBERSHIPS AND
AFFILIATIONS:
• The Bee Equity Partners Ltd

Sattar Jackaria is a Fellow of the
Institute and Faculty of Actuaries (UK)
and holds a BSc (Hons) in Mathematics,
Operational Research, Statistics &
Economics from the University of
Warwick, UK.

PROFESSIONAL JOURNEY:
He started his career in 1999 by spending
7 years in London working for a global
actuarial consulting firm. He then
returned to Mauritius in 2006 to join
Swan Life Ltd as Senior Manager of
its Actuarial Department. During his
time at Swan, he performed various
functions including pensions &
investment advisory, reserving, pricing
& product development. On 1 October
2016, he joined IBL Ltd as Head of
Financial Services.

BOARD MEMBERSHIPS AND
AFFILIATIONS:

QUALIFICATION:
Born in 1984, Mr. Pilot has a Bachelor of
Commerce majoring in Accounting and
Finance in 2005 from Curtin University
Australia. He was admitted as member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountant
in Australia & New Zealand in 2009 and
as member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountant in England & Wales in 2010.

PROFESSIONAL JOURNEY:
He worked for PwC from 2008 to 2010
and joined Eclosia Group in 2010.
In 2013, he was appointed as Group
Finance Manager of Indigo Hotels
& Resorts until 2016 where he was
nominated as Group Chief Financial
Officer of Eclosia Group.

BOARD MEMBERSHIPS AND
AFFILIATIONS:
• The Bee Equity Partners Ltd

• DTOS Ltd
• Knights & Johns Management Ltd
• The Bee Equity Partners Ltd
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INVESTMENT COMMITTEE MEMBERS’
PROFILES

SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM
PROFILES

01.

MUSHTAQ OOSMAN (Mr.)
CHAIRMAN OF THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
APPOINTED ON:
15 April 2017 as Member
9 May 2017 as Chairman

QUALIFICATION:
Born in Mauritius, Mr. Oosman is a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

02.

JEAN-CLAUDE BÉGA (Mr.)
MEMBER OF THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
APPOINTED ON:
10 February 2017

PROFESSIONAL JOURNEY:
After completing his studies in the UK, Mr. Oosman
joined De Chazal Du Mee in 1983. In 1985, he joined
Roger de Chazal and Partners now PwC. Over the years
together with other Partners PwC grew to become one of
the largest firm on the island.

03.

CATHERINE GRIS (Mrs.)
MEMBER OF THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
APPOINTED ON:

Refer to profile on page 6.

04.

NICOLAS WEISS (Mr.)
MEMBER OF THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
APPOINTED ON:
15 April 2017

EDUCATION:

15 April 2017

Ingenieur des Télécoms – ESSEC Business School - MBA Degree,
Cranfield University (UK).

QUALIFICATION:

PROFESSIONAL JOURNEY:

Born in Mauritius in 1958, Mrs. Catherine Gris obtained her
Baccalaureat in 1976 and is since 1980 a Graduate of the
Institute of Political Studies (Paris). In 2004 she completed a
Cycle of Higher Studies of Economic Development Ministry
of Finance & Economy (Bercy) Paris.

PROFESSIONAL JOURNEY:
Between Reunion Island and Mauritius since 2009,
Mrs. Gris acts as Special Adviser of Association of Mauritian
Manufacturers of which she was the former CEO from 2009
to 30 June 2018.
She was involved in the creation in 2013 of the Mauritian
Umbrella Brand of local products: « Made in Moris ».
Member of the Mauritius section of the French CCEF - The
French Foreign Trade Advisors (CCEF) from 2007 to 2017
and “Chevalière de l’Ordre du Mérite”.

Nicolas Weiss is a Telecommunications engineer. He started
his career in 1988 at Deltabanque, where he developed an
interest rate risk management system. He later developed
portfolio insurance and market arbitrage models. In 1991,
he joined M.Philippe Oddo and helped raise the clientele
of Institutional Investors for mutual funds actions, bonds
and derivatives. In 1993, he joined Mr. Le Baron Edmond
de Rothschild and was General Manager and Shareholder
to the creation of AssMgt subsidiaries of the Rothschild
Group in Europe: Rothschild Asset Management (EUR20Bn),
E.de AssMgt Rothschild Investment Services (USD4Bn),
and Rothschild Multi Management (EUR5bn). Nicolas Weiss
was also director and treasurer for ‘Rothschild Fundations’
since 1997. He left the Rothschild Group in 2010 to settle
in Mauritius. Nicolas Weiss has been teaching finance at
ESSEC, at Paris Dauphine and at Arts et Métiers. He is a jury
member at ESSEC since 1987.

01.

OLIVIER FAYOLLE (Mr.)
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
JOINED ON:
15 April 2016
Refer to profile on page 6.

02.

HAIDAR SOOGUND (Mr.)

03.

MURUGESSEN (RAJ) CANDASAMY (Mr.)
INVESTMENT MANAGER
JOINED ON:
23 July 2018

QUALIFICATION:
Raj holds a first class honours degree in Banking
and Investment from the University of Mauritius.

PROFESSIONAL JOURNEY:

FINANCE MANAGER
JOINED ON:
9 May 2018

QUALIFICATION:
Born in 1995, Haidar is an Associate Chartered
Accountant (ACA) of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW).

PROFESSIONAL JOURNEY:
Before joining The Bee, Haidar worked as an
auditor at EY Mauritius where he has gained
extensive experience in the audit of major listed
companies on the Stock Exchange of Mauritius as
well as asset management companies.

Prior to joining The Bee, Raj worked at MCB
Capital Markets, the investment banking arm of
the MCB Group where he was a Private Equity
executive for the MCB Equity Fund, a USD100M
ever-green fund deployed over sub-Saharan and
francophone Africa. Previously, Raj worked for
KPMG’s Transaction Services department in
Mauritius, conducting due diligence, valuation
missions and forensic assignments in Mauritius and
Indian Ocean region.

Between 1998 and 2006, she acted as Secretary General ADIR
(Association pour le développement industriel de la Réunion).
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CHAIRMAN’S
MESSAGE
DEAR STAKEHOLDER,
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present you with the Annual Report of The Bee Equity Partners Ltd
(“The Bee” or the “Company”) for the year ended 30 June 2018.
This year’s report is articulated along some of the fundamental principles that guide us in the way we manage the Company.
By combining those principles with the corporate identity of The Bee, we devised the taglines punctuating the various sections
of the report, notably: Bee committed, Bee bold, Bee accountable, Bee effective and Bee accurate. Allow me the opportunity
to illustrate how we strived to apply these principles during the year under review.

DELIVERING ON OUR COMMITMENTS
Boldness is about challenging the status quo and daring to take calculated risks based on the fundamental conviction that the
purpose is worth it. When we embarked on our private equity journey two years ago, we knew it was never going to be a walk
in the park. Today, we remain absolutely convinced that we have a role to play to foster entrepreneurship, innovation and
much-needed investments in Mauritius. So, despite undeniable structural and cultural challenges, we remain more than ever
committed to our vision and determined to work even harder to succeed.

“Boldness is about
challenging the
status quo and daring
to take calculated
risks based on
the fundamental
conviction that the
purpose is worth it.”
JEAN-CLAUDE BÉGA
CHAIRMAN

While we progress on our transformational journey, the Board remains accountable for the ongoing financial performance of
the Company. In that respect, I am pleased to report that the Net Asset Value (“NAV”) of the Company increased by 9% to
Rs 66.34 per share during the year, generating a total gain of 10% including the dividend paid out to Shareholders at the end
of the financial year. The good performance was achieved through an effective management of our assets and by providing our
closely held investee companies with the guidance and support they needed to continue thrive and create value.
I am also pleased to observe that the share price of the Company climbed by 46% to Rs 35 during the year, translating into a
reduced discount of 49% to NAV as at 30 June 2018. I wish to address my warm thanks to our Shareholders for the trust they
continue to place in us.

GOOD GOVERNANCE
Various initiatives were undertaken during the year to further enhance our corporate governance standards. We set up an
Audit & Risk Committee, which, in the context of our private equity strategy, will add considerable value. At the last Annual
Meeting of Shareholders, a special resolution was also passed to amend the Constitution of the Company to allow the
re-election of Directors by rotation, as required by the new Code of Corporate Governance for Mauritius (2016).
Finally, I would like to apprise you of three new appointments to the Board of Directors of the Company at the date of the
approval of this annual report, namely Messrs. Madhukar Gujadhur, Denis-Claude Pilot and Sattar Jackaria. Brief profiles of
these new Directors are set out on pages 6 and 7.

THANK-YOU NOTE
On behalf of the Board, I would like to express my sincerest appreciation to Messrs. Dayanidhi Gujadhur, Thierry Lagesse and
Yann Duchesne, who ceased to hold office as Directors of the Company in December 2017 and July 2018. I would also like to
seize this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors, the Investment Committee members and the Management team for their
contributions and hard work during the year.

JEAN-CLAUDE BÉGA
Chairman
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CEO’S
REPORT

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO MOVEMENTS (Rs MILLION)
+112

PORTFOLIO

418
(37)
+29

OLIVIER FAYOLLE
CEO

30-Jun-18

Impairments

3%

32%

35%

2018

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE
For the year under review, the Net Asset Value (“NAV”) of the
Company increased by a healthy Rs 48.2M or 9%, to reach
Rs 585.2M at 30 June 2018. Excluding the dividend paid to
Shareholders in June 2018, the NAV rose by 10%.

30%

The commendable NAV increase was underpinned by
substantial gains from the revaluation of some of our
portfolio holdings. Those amounted to Rs 28.8M in 2018,
of which Rs 10.0M attributable to our associated companies,
Rs 6.6M to our subsidiary FAST and the remaining spread
amongst other investments.

The increase in the valuation of FAST is in line with the
strong outlook for the Mauritian construction sector.
FAST experienced a pleasing cyclical upturn in 2018, as further
explained in the ‘Financial results’ section below.

THE BEE EQUITY PARTNERS LTD | ANNUAL REPORT 2018

BY SECTOR

As at 30 June 2018, our portfolio was valued at Rs 417.7M,
almost evenly distributed amongst listed equity, unlisted
equity and fixed-income securities. The balanced structure
offers adequate protection against volatility whilst allowing us
to capture potential capital appreciations.

Our two associates, each operating a 100-key resort hotel
under the Radisson Blu® banner, have constantly improved
their operating profitability since 2017. A new management
team repositioned the two hotels on selective high-value
markets, translating into improved occupancy and room
rates levels. In 2018, new initiatives have been implemented
such as intensive marketing efforts and a reinforced focus on
guest experience. The potential for additional improvements
remains strong.

14

Disposals

Additions

Fair value

During the year, we also disposed of various mature
investments for a total value of Rs 37.2M, of which Rs 17.7M
related to our BlueLife shares which were tendered to
IBL Ltd following the latter’s mandatory takeover offer closed in
May 2018.

“In the year under
review, the Net
Asset Value of the
Company increased
by a healthy
Rs 48.2M or 9%, to
reach Rs 585.2M at
30 June 2018.”

(1)

315

30-Jun-17

During the year under review, we invested Rs 111.5M in
sovereign fixed-income securities, thereby putting at work
the excess cash holdings inherited from the previous year’s
major disposal transactions. We believe sovereign securities
offer the best risk-return compromise in the current
fixed-income market environment. The sovereign investments
are earmarked for the financing of our future private equity
projects. By funding our medium-term cash needs with low
risk, liquid investments, we will have the full latitude to manage
our equity portfolio with a long-term approach, as is required
for the asset class.

Financial services

Sovereign

Industry & commerce

Hospitality

BY ASSET CLASS
3%

8%
6%

32%
36%
32%
49%

2017

33%
2018

CIS & Other

Unlisted shares

Fixed income

Listed shares
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CEO’S
REPORT

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

It is to be noted that our NAV also benefited from a gain of
Rs 16.1M on the revaluation of our real property in Queen
Victoria, Flacq. The revaluation comes in the context of a project
we are currently undertaking to unlock the value of the property.

Top 5 Holdings

Asset Class

On the other hand, the return on our listed equities portfolio
was a weak spot in 2018. Our performance was hampered
by our high exposure to MCB Group Ltd, whose share price
appreciated by only 1.5% during the year.

Valuation

Market
Rs’000

Weighting

MCB Group Limited

Ordinary shares

SEM

110,400

26%

Flacq Associated Stonemasters Ltd

Ordinary shares

Unlisted

94,783

23%

Government of Mauritius Notes

Fixed income

Unlisted

83,470

20%

Bank of Mauritius Treasury Bills

Fixed income

Unlisted

28,051

7%

United Investments Ltd

Fixed income

DEM

20,544

5%

FINANCIAL RESULTS
At Company level, revenue decreased by 18% to Rs 24.9M in
2018, essentially due to a one-off dividend of Rs 8.5M received
from a portfolio company translating into a higher-than-usual
revenue in 2017. In 2018, we also received an exceptional
dividend from another investee company, albeit for a lower
amount of Rs 2.6M. At Rs 11.3M, the dividend received from
FAST increased by 25.0% in 2018 compared to 2017 (Rs 9.1M)
following much improved financial performance by our
building materials subsidiary. This has mitigated the decrease
in dividends resulting from the disposal of various unlisted
investments in 2017.
The Company ended the year with a profit after tax of
Rs 24.8M (2017: 46.8M). The decrease as compared to the
previous year is substantially explained by the fact that we
incurred a net loss of Rs 4.0M on disposals in 2018 compared
to a net gain of Rs 78.3M in 2017 following the conclusion
of a major disposal transaction. The decrease in profit was
however mitigated by minimal impairment losses in 2018 as
compared to Rs 46.2M in 2017. Additionally, the revaluation
of our investment property in Queen Victoria translated into
a gain of Rs 16.1M in 2018, as compared to Rs 4.1M in 2017.
Finally, no additional provision was made on the loans to our
associates in the year under review (2017: Rs 11.8M).

From a consolidated point of view, the Group posted a
commendable 16% increase in revenue to Rs 117.4M amidst a
31% growth in the turnover of FAST. After two successive years
of weaker demand in the eastern region, various construction
projects launched in 2018 translated into increased sales
volumes for our subsidiary. Group profit after tax amounted to
Rs 28.4M, a decrease of 38% attributable to various exceptional
items at Company level, as more detailed above.

STRATEGIC UPDATE
We recently mandated an external investment management
firm to manage our listed equities portfolio. Doing so,
we aim to ensure that our listed equity portfolio delivers
best-in-class performances while allowing the management to
focus its resources on what has become the core business of
the Company: private equity.
On that front, we pursued our efforts unabated during the
year to progress on our strategic roadmap. We continued to
build capacity with new recruits, new deal origination avenues
and enhanced internal processes. We analysed numerous
opportunities and at time of writing, a number of attractive
projects are being negotiated and tangible progress is
expected in the near future.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
I would like to express my appreciation to the Directors of the
Company, to the Members of the Investment Committee and
to my team members for their respective contributions to the
progress of the Company.
My final words will go to you, dear stakeholder, whether you are
a shareholder, an investment advisor or simply a friend of the
Company. You may be in contact with aspiring entrepreneurs,
highly-skilled individuals or bold business leaders looking
for reliable, value-adding partners to help them start up,
scale up or revamp their businesses. By referring to us those
talented individuals, you may allow us another opportunity
to accomplish our mission to support local entrepreneurs in
their development endeavours. I therefore humbly invite you
to “Bee” with us.

+9%
Rs 66.34
Net Asset Value
Per Share
(2017: Rs 60.88)

+10.1%

OLIVIER FAYOLLE
CEO

E. info@thebee.mu
T. 460 00 09

Total return on
Net Asset Value

-47%
Rs 24.8M
Company Profit
After Tax
(2017: Rs 46.8M)

×6.7
Rs 54.0M

Company Total
Comprehensive Income
(2017: Rs 8.1M)
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GOVERNANCE
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GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT
INTRODUCTION

COMMON DIRECTORS

The Bee Equity Partners Ltd (“The Bee” or the ‘‘Company’’) is an investment firm incorporated on 9 October 1974. A public
company limited by shares, The Bee is listed on the Development & Enterprise Market (“DEM”) of the Stock Exchange of Mauritius.

The Directors regard IBL Ltd as the ultimate holding company. As at 30 June 2018, the Directors of The Bee who also sit on the
Board of IBL Ltd are as follows:

In accordance with the Financial Reporting Act 2004, The Bee is a Public Interest Entity and as such, applies the principles of the
Code of Corporate Governance for Mauritius (2016).
In view of constantly ensuring the protection of Shareholders’ interests and enhancing ethical business conduct in the
decision-making processes, the Board and the management of The Bee reiterate their dedication to maintaining high standards
of transparency and business integrity. Likewise, the representatives of The Bee on the boards of the portfolio companies also
ensure that sound governance practices are applied consistently.
This report addresses the corporate governance framework and compliance of the Company with the disclosure requirements
of the new Code of Corporate Governance (2016) (“the Code”), for Mauritius, which is based on an “apply and explain basis”.
The Board considers that it has applied the principles of the new Code throughout the year and that it will review and monitor
this application for continued improvement and adaptation to principles of governance.

The Bee

IBL Ltd

Jean-Claude Béga

√*

-

Jan Boullé

√

√*

Yann Duchesne

√

√

Olivier Fayolle

√

-

Madhukar Gujadhur

√

-

Thierry Lagesse

√

√

Denis-Claude Pilot

√

-

* Chairman

The directorships of the Directors of the Company in other companies listed on the Stock Exchange of Mauritius as at 30 June 2018
are shown in the table below:

SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE

Other
Shareholders

IBL Ltd
34.95%

65.05%

ALTEO

BLL

IBL

LUX

MEI

PBL

PICL

UBP

Jean-Claude Béga

√

-

-

√

√

√

√

-

Jan Boullé

√

√

√ **

√

-

√

√

-

Yann Duchesne

-

-

√

-

-

-

-

√

Thierry Lagesse

√

-

√

√

-

√

√

√

** Chairman

The other Directors do not have any directorship in the Companies listed on the Stock Exchange of Mauritius.

THE BEE EQUITY PARTNERS LTD

ALTEO
BLL
IBL
MEI
LUX
PBL
PICL
UBP

Alteo Limited
BlueLife Limited
IBL Ltd
Mauritian Eagle Insurance Company Limited
Lux Island Resorts Ltd
Phoenix Beverages Limited
Phoenix Investment Company Limited
The United Basalt Products Ltd

The Directors’ brief profiles as well as their respective list of directorships are set out on pages 6 and 7.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
IBL Ltd is the only substantial shareholder of the Company. The 10 largest shareholders of The Bee as at 30 June 2018 are set
out below:
Number of Ordinary
Shares Owned

% of Total
Issued Shares

3,083,292

34.95

P.O.L.I.C.Y. LTD

317,262

3.60

The MCB Ltd (A/C Ste de Courcelles)

314,504

3.56

The MCB Ltd (A/C The MDIT Co Ltd)

208,387

2.36

M. I. Kathrada & Sons Ltd

118,505

1.34

The MCB Ltd (A/C Axys Mauritian Equity Fund Ltd)

114,734

1.30

Succession Marie Joseph Robert Lagesse

112,787

1.28

Sugar Insurance Fund Board

84,408

0.96

The MCB Ltd (A/C Attitude Pension Fund)

83,700

0.95

TSAR LTD

78,354

0.89

IBL Ltd

SHAREHOLDING PROFILE

Number of
Shareholders

Size of
Shareholding

Number of Ordinary
Shares Owned

% of Total
Issued Shares

1,355

1 - 500 shares

160,647

1.82

250

501 - 1,000 shares

178,553

2.02

359

1,001 - 5,000 shares

836,665

9.49

79

5,001 - 10,000 shares

559,736

6.35

94

10,001 - 50,000 shares

1,957,507

22.19

13

50,001 - 100,000 shares

858,368

9.73

4

100,001 - 250,000 shares

554,413

6.29

2

250,001 - 500,000 shares

631,766

7.16

1

Over 500,000 shares

3,083,292

34.95

8,820,947

100.00

Number of
Shareholders

Category of
Shareholders

Number of Ordinary
Shares Owned

% of Total
Issued Shares

1,999

Individuals

3,513,936

39.84

2

Insurance and Assurance Companies

85,698

0.97

43

Pension and Provident Funds

873,019

9.90

24

Investment and Trust Companies

257,936

2.92

89

Other Corporate Bodies

4,090,358

46.37

8,820,947

100.00

2,157
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Category of
Shareholders

Number of Ordinary
Shares Owned

% of Total
Issued Shares

2,121

Local

8,685,057

98.46

36

Foreign

135,890

1.54

8,820,947

100.00

2,157

SHARE PRICE INFORMATION
At the date of the approval of this Corporate Governance
Report by the Board on 21 September 2018, the share of The
Bee is quoted at Rs 39.00 on the Development & Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange of Mauritius.

Date
30 June 2014

Price (Rs)
87.00

THE BEE’S CONSTITUTION
A copy of the Constitution is available on the following web address:
https://www.iblgroup.com/content/financial-other-services
and upon request in writing to the Company Secretary at
the Registered Office of the Company, 4th Floor, IBL House,
Caudan Waterfront, Port Louis.
There are no clauses of the Constitution deemed material
enough for special disclosure.

30 June 2015

72.00

30 June 2016

15.65*

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

30 June 2017

24.00

30 June 2018

35.00

The Board which is not only responsible for the setting up of the
Company’s strategic objectives, values and standards, is also
liable and accountable for the management and performance of
the Company’s affairs. The Board also assumes responsibilities
for meeting all legal and regulatory requirements.

* In the year ended 30 June 2016, the Company distributed Rs 100.59 per
share worth of assets to its Shareholders by way of a dividend in specie.

The share ownership and categories of shareholders at 30 June 2018 are set out below:

2,157

Number of
Shareholders

DIVIDEND POLICY
In May 2018, the Board of Directors approved a dividend
policy whereby the declaration amount and payment of future
dividends depend on various factors including the results of
operations, cash flows, performance of investments, working
capital requirements, future projects and other factors
deemed relevant by the Board. As required by the Mauritius
Companies Act 2001, for each declaration of dividend, the
Directors ensure that the Company satisfies the solvency
test and accordingly, sign a certificate confirming that the
Company is solvent.
A Shareholder having dividend paid by cheque may request
Ocorian Corporate Administrators Limited (formerly known
as Abax Corporate Administrators Ltd) to be paid directly into
a bank account on the same day that the dividend is paid.
This might be more convenient to reduce the risk of cheques
being lost or delayed by the post. Upon payment of dividend
directly into a bank account, the Shareholder will receive the
associated credit advice at his registered address.
During the year under review, the Company declared a final
dividend of Rs 0.66 per share in respect of the financial year
ended 30 June 2018 (2017: Nil).

Accordingly, the Board oversees the operations of the
Company through quarterly board meetings, during which the
management of The Bee presents a review of all the operations
and projects of the Company and provides updated financial
reports, budgets and forecasts for the Company.
The Board has no specific Board charter and considers that
the Constitution of the Company itself is clear and structured
enough to lead the good functioning of the Board. Accordingly,
the duties of the Board, the proceedings of the Board as well
as the remuneration and other interests of Directors are
thoroughly dealt by clauses 24, 25 and 26 of the Company’s
Constitution. There is no predetermined frequency for reviewing
the said Constitution. The review of this document is more of
an ongoing process, since, should there be major amendments
to law or should there be the necessity to do so to provide for
more rigorous governance practices, the Constitution, upon
recommendation of the Board might be accordingly amended
by passing a special resolution of shareholders to this effect at a
shareholders’ meeting. For instance, at the last annual meeting
of the Company in December 2017, a special resolution of
shareholders was passed to amend the Constitution in respect
of allowing re-election of Directors by rotation at the Annual
Meeting of the Company.
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A copy of the approved Constitution of the Company has
been duly filed with the Registrar of Companies thus making it
available to the public for consultation.

The Code of Ethics of the holding company namely, IBL Ltd, is
currently being reviewed. Once approved by the Board of IBL Ltd,
The Bee plans to adhere to the same code.

The Board is equally dedicated to high moral values and
ethical conduct in dealing with all its stakeholders. The Board
of the Company has accordingly adopted a ‘values statement’
and ensures that such values are followed by the employees
and the portfolio companies.

GENERAL ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
At the date of this report, the general organisation structure of
the Company is as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE

Jean-Claude Béga – Chairman
Jan Boullé – Non-Executive Director
Olivier Fayolle – Executive Director
Madhukar Gujadhur – Independent Non-Executive Director
Sattar Jackaria – Non-Executive Director
Denis-Claude Pilot – Independent Non-Executive Director

Denis-Claude Pilot – Chairman
Madhukar Gujadhur – Member
Sattar Jackaria – Member
OLIVIER FAYOLLE
Chief Executive Officer

RAJ CANDASAMY
Investment Manager

Since the publication of the last Annual Report of The Bee, the
following changes occurred in the composition of the Board:
• Mr. Dayanidhi Gujadhur resigned as Director of the
Company on 5 December 2017 and consequently
Mr. Madhukar Gujadhur was removed as Alternate Director
of the Company on 5 December 2017;
• Mr. Yann Duchesne resigned as Director on 31 July 2018;
• Mr. Thierry Lagesse resigned as Director on 31 July 2018;
• Mr. Madhukar Gujadhur was appointed as Director of the
Company on 13 December 2017;
• Mr. Denis-Claude Pilot was appointed as Director of the
Company on 13 December 2017; and
• Mr. Sattar Jackaria was appointed Director of the Company
on 28 August 2018.
The board has approved the job descriptions of the key senior
officers of the Company.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
Mushtaq Oosman - Chairman
Jean-Claude Béga – Member
Catherine Gris - Member
Nicolas Weiss– Member

HAIDAR SOOGUND
Finance Manager

DIRECTORS’, COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ AND SENIOR
GOVERNANCE POSITIONS PROFILES
Please refer to pages 6 to 9 of this Report.
For practical reasons and given the fact that the directorship list
of Directors is constantly subject to changes, the Board decided
that only directorships of Directors in Public Interest Entities have
been disclosed in the respective profile of each Director. The full
directorship list of each Directors is filed with the Registrar of
Companies each year with the Annual Return of the Company.
Moreover, a copy of full directorship list of Directors is available
upon written request made to the Company Secretary.

THE BOARD
The Board of Directors is committed to the highest standard
of business integrity, transparency and professionalism and
ensures that the activities of the Company are managed
ethically and responsibly in line with the relevant laws and
regulations in order to build a sustainable business and to
protect and enhance shareholders’ value.

Composition
The Bee is managed by a unitary Board of 6 members, 1 of whom
is an Executive Director, 3 of whom are Non-Executive Directors
and 2 of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The Board is of the opinion that given the current size and scale
of complexity of the organisation, the presence of one Executive
Director on the Board is sufficient for the time being.
Moreover, the main activity of The Bee being to hold and
manage a portfolio of listed and unlisted investments, Directors
are appointed based on their general and specific knowledge
in economics, portfolio management, investment assessment,
venture capital and entrepreneurship. The Board hence
considers that given the size of the Company, its structure, its
scope of activities and geographical spread of operation, the
current Directors have the required expertise, as well as the
appropriate mix of core competencies, knowledge, diversity
and are of appropriate calibre to manage the Company in an
efficient manner to achieve the established strategy.

Shareholders as well as the Company itself. Accordingly,
50% of the Directors do not have any relationship with the
major Shareholder of the Company and 33% of the Directors
have no relationship with the Company itself.
The Directors have taken note of the recommendations with
regard to diversity and have considered same in the selection
and appointment of appropriate candidates for the Board and
Committees. In view of improving such diversity, the Directors
will continue to review the composition of the Board to identify
the most suitable candidates for the Company.

Key Roles and Responsibilities
The Board operates under the chairmanship of
Mr. Jean-Claude Béga who assumes the responsibility for
leading the Board and ensuring its effectiveness. There is a
clear division of responsibility between the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Mr. Olivier Fayolle whose
responsibility resides in managing and leading the business of
the Company.

In view of ensuring proper balance of power as well as
enhancing its performance, the Board also ensures that
sufficient Directors have no relationship with the major

Non-Executive Chairman:
Mr. Jean-Claude Béga

Executive Director:
Mr. Olivier Fayolle

Mr. Jean-Claude Béga who took over the chairmanship of the
Board in February 2017 has the primary function to preside
over the meetings of Directors and ensure smooth functioning
of the Board in the best interests of good governance.

Mr. Olivier Fayolle, CEO of The Bee, is responsible for the
effective conduct of the Company’s business activities. He is
responsible amongst others for:

Mr. Jean-Claude Béga provides overall leadership to the
Board and ensures its effectiveness by encouraging the
active participation of each Director in board discussions and
board decisions.

• Developing and recommending to the Board annual
business plans and budgets that support the Company’s
long-term vision and strategy;
• Ensuring that the Company’s strategy and policies are
implemented; and
• Ensuring that the Company’s financial and operating
objectives are achieved.

Non-Executive Directors:
Messrs. Jan Boullé and Sattar Jackaria

Independent Directors:
Messrs. Madhukar Gujadhur and Denis-Claude Pilot

The Non-Executive Directors beneficially challenge the
Executive Director while ensuring that the expected goals
and strategy are met.

The Independent Directors equally challenge the Executive
Director in a constructive manner and monitor alignment
with the agreed objectives and strategy.

Company Secretary: IBL Management Ltd

The Company Secretary is available to provide assistance and information on governance and corporate administration
issues. It has the primary responsibility for guiding the Board as to its duties and responsibilities. The Company Secretary
also ensures that all board procedures are followed, and that applicable laws and regulations are complied with.
The Company Secretary is also responsible for taking accurate and precise board minutes, which are submitted for approval
at the following meeting.
The Company Secretary also acts as Secretary of Board sub-committees.
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Board Meetings
The Board has 4 scheduled meetings each year. In addition,
special meetings may be called from time to time as determined
by the needs of the business. The Directors are aware of their
responsibility for attending these meetings.
Board meetings are convened by giving appropriate notice after
obtaining approval of the Chairman. As a general rule, detailed
agenda, management reports and other explanatory statements
are circulated in advance amongst the Directors to facilitate
meaningful, informed and focused decisions at the meetings.
Moreover, the Board Members have unrestricted access to the
records of the Company and have the right to seek independent
professional advice at the expense of the Company, to enable it
to discharge its responsibilities effectively.
A quorum of 4 Directors is currently required for a board
meeting and in case of equality of votes, the Chairman has a
casting vote.

Matters Considered by the Board in 2017-2018
During the year under review, the Board met on 5 occasions
and the following items have been considered and approved
amongst others:
• The recommendation of the Board to the Shareholders of
The Bee not to sell their shares as per the offer made to
them by Equity Spectrum Ltd;
• A draft version of the Reply Document to be sent to
shareholders of The Bee;
• The Company’s audited financial statements as at 30 June 2017;
• The Company’s abridged audited annual financial
statements of the Company as at 30 June 2017;
• The Company’s Corporate Governance Report 2017;
• The convening of the Annual Meeting 2017;
• The recommendation to the Shareholders to amend the
Constitution of the Company to provide for re-election of
Directors by rotation;
• The Company’s condensed unaudited financial statements
for the quarter ended 30 September 2017;
• The renewal of the mandate of the Investment Committee
for one year;
• The Company’s condensed unaudited financial statements
for the quarter ended 31 December 2017;
• The launching of a Board and Directors’ performance
evaluation exercise during the year 2018/2019 and each
subsequent 3 years;
• The adoption of new asset allocation targets and investment
policies resulting in a substantial reshuffling of the existing
investment portfolio;
• The redeployment of excess cash & cash equivalents into
specific interest-bearing securities and fixed deposits;
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• The outsourcing of the management of the local equities’
portfolio to a specialised asset management firm;
• The dividend policy;
• The declaration and payment of a dividend;
• The disposal of all the shares held by the Company in
BlueLife Limited to IBL Ltd following the latter’s mandatory
takeover offer, for a consideration of Rs 16,239,475; and
• The setting up of the Company’s Audit & Risk Committee
and the appointment of the Members of this Committee.
The Directors also adopted amongst others by way of written
resolution during the year under review:
• The communiqué informing the Shareholders and the
public at large that the offer made by Equity Spectrum Ltd
had lapsed since the requested conditions to the offer were
not fulfilled;
• Appointment of Messrs. Madhukar Gujadhur and
Denis-Claude Pilot as Independent Non-Executive Directors
of the Company; and
• The Company’s condensed unaudited financial statements
for the quarter and nine months ended 31 March 2018.
The Directors also considered and adopted amongst others the
following resolutions further to the end of the financial year:
• Appointment of Mr. Sattar Jackaria as Non-Executive
Director and Member of the Audit & Risk Committee of
the Company.

Attendance at Board Meetings in 2017-2018
The attendance report of the Directors at the board meetings for the year ended 30 June 2018, as well as their gross remuneration
for the year are shown hereunder:
Attendance at the Board Meetings
of the Company

Remuneration at
30 June 2018

Jean-Claude Béga

5 out of 5

Rs 75,000 1

Jan Boullé

5 out of 5

Rs 75,000 1

Yann Duchesne

4 out of 5

Rs 75,000 1

Olivier Fayolle

5 out of 5

Rs 3,518,991.20 2

Dayanidhi Gujadhur3

05 out of 3

Rs 32,465.75

Thierry Lagesse

15 out of 5

Rs 75,000

Madhukar Gujadhur4

2 out of 2

Rs 41,095.89

Denis-Claude Pilot4

2 out of 2

Rs 41,095.89

Directors

Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors are paid a flat fee of Rs 75,000 per annum in pro rata of their respective appointment and
resignation date on the Board.
The emoluments of Messrs. Jean-Claude Béga, Jan Boullé and Yann Duchesne, have been paid to IBL Ltd.
This figure relates to the emoluments of the Executive Director as an employee of the Company. No Director’s fees were paid to the Executive Director.
3
Mr. Dayanidhi Gujadhur resigned as Director of the Company on 5 December 2017.
4
Messrs Madhukar Gujadhur and Denis-Claude Pilot were appointed Directors of the Company on 13 December 2017.
5
It is to be noted that in the absence of Mr. Dayanidhi Gujadhur at the three board meetings of the Company which he was entitled to attend, the latter
was represented at these board meetings by his Alternate Director namely Mr. Madhukar Gujadhur.
5
It is to be noted that in the absence of Mr. Thierry Lagesse at the four other board meetings of the Company during the year, the latter was represented at
these board meetings by his Alternate Director namely Mr. Jean-Claude Béga.
1
2

Board Committees
The Board of Directors is assisted and supported by 2
sub-committees namely the Audit & Risk Committee as well as
the Investment Committee to help it in discharging its duties
and functions.
These Committees are chaired and composed of experienced
members who then report to the Board on activities of the
respective Committees and make recommendations on
matters delegated to them under their respective Terms
of Reference.
The Terms of Reference of these Committees are reviewed
by the Board should there be major changes which require to
adjust the composition, processes, duties and responsibilities
of these Committees.

Audit & Risk Committee
In May 2018, The Board approved the setting up of the Audit &
Risk Committee. The Committee ensures integrity of accounting
and financial reporting, risk management and review of
internal control systems and procedures in order to assist the
Board to perform its duties. The Committee monitors the role
and scope of work of assurance providers (currently, external
auditors only, as no internal auditors have been appointed yet)
and ensures compliance with legal and regulatory provisions.
The Committee has the authority to conduct or authorise

investigations into a matter within its scope of responsibilities
and to engage any firm of professionals it deems fit to provide
independent expert advice. The Committee has full access to
all management personnel and can call upon any member of
management and staff or any Member of the Board to attend
its meetings.
Composition
The Committee is chaired by Mr. Denis-Claude Pilot,
an Independent Non-Executive Director. The other
Members of the Committee are Mr. Madhukar Gujadhur,
Independent Non-Executive Director and Mr. Sattar Jackaria,
Non-Executive Director.
Matters considered by the Committee in 2017-2018
The Audit & Risk Committee met 1 time during the year and
has considered the following:
• Nomination of the Chairman of the Committee;
• Review of the Audit & Risk Committee’s Terms of Reference;
• Audit fees quoted by the external auditor and terms of
engagement for the year ended 30 June 2018;
• Consideration on the appointment of an internal auditor; and
• Work plan of the Committee for the financial year ending
30 June 2019.
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Committee Attendance
The attendance report of the Audit & Risk Committee for the
year ended 30 June 2018, is shown hereunder:
Members

Attendance at the Audit & Risk
Committee of the Company

Denis-Claude Pilot

1 out of 1

Yan Duchesne*

1 out of 1

Madhukar Gujadhur

1 out of 1

* Mr. Yan Duschesne resigned as Director and Committee Member on
31 July 2018 and Mr. Sattar Jackaria was appointed in replacement
on 28 August 2018.

Remuneration of the Audit & Risk Committee
At 30 June 2018, the remuneration of the Members of the
Audit & Risk Committee was not yet determined by the Board
and accordingly no fees were paid to the Members for the
period under review.

Matters considered by the Committee in 2017-2018
During the year under review, the Investment Committee
met 3 times and the following matters were considered and
discussed amongst others:
• Investment strategy of the Company;
• Management of fixed-income portfolio of the Company;
• Identification of authorised counterparties for the Company;
• Identification of an external investment manager for the
management of the Company’s portfolio of listed securities;
• Sale of the Company’s stake in BlueLife Limited; and
• Various private equity projects.
Committee Attendance
The attendance report of the Investment Committee for the
year ended 30 June 2018, is shown hereunder:
Members

Attendance at the Investment
Committee of the Company

Investment Committee

Mushtaq Oosman

3 out of 3

As part of the new strategy of The Bee and in view of mitigating
investment risk, the Board has set up an Investment Committee
to advise and assist the Directors in evaluating and authorising
investment and disposal transactions. This Investment
Committee which is composed of a majority of Non-Board
Members has no decision-making power. This Committee only
acts as a consultative cell making recommendations to the Board
concerning investment projects. It is to be noted that the Board
has the duty to monitor the exercise of the tasks handled by
the Investment Committee and remains ultimately accountable
and responsible for the decisions, performance and affairs of
the Company. The Members of the Investment Committee may
obtain such outside or other independent professional advice
as it considers necessary to carry out their duties.

Jean-Claude Béga

3 out of 3

Catherine Gris

3 out of 3

Nicolas Weiss

3 out of 3

Composition
The Investment Committee is chaired by Mr. Mushtaq Oosman.
As Chairman of the Investment Committee, Mr. Oosman has
the duty to report on the activities and the recommendations of
the Committee to be submitted to the Board for consideration
and approval/rejection. The other Members of the Committee
are Mr. Nicolas Weiss and Mrs. Catherine Gris, Non-Board
Members and Mr Jean-Claude Béga, Non-Executive Director.
Moreover, Mr. Olivier Fayolle, who is the Executive Director
of The Bee is also in attendance of all Investment Committee
meetings and is therefore present at board meetings of the
Company to report to the Board on deliberations of the
Investment Committee.
The prevalence of Non-Board Members in the Committee is in
line with the desire of the Board that the Investment Committee
provide an external and objective opinion to the Board.
Brief profiles of the Members of the Investment Committee
are set out on page 8.
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Remuneration of the Investment Committee
Non-Board Members of the Investment Committee receive
annual remuneration, which is commensurate with their
scope of work and responsibilities. The other Member of the
Investment Committee namely Mr. Jean-Claude Béga does
not receive any remuneration in respect of his mandate on
this Committee.

DIRECTOR APPOINTMENT PROCEDURE
The Board acknowledges responsibility for the appointment of
Directors and ensures that a formal and transparent procedure
is respected with regard to the selection and appointment
of Directors.
In accordance with the Company’s Constitution, the Board may
fill vacancies or newly-created directorships on the Board that
may occur between Annual Meetings of Shareholders, but so
that the total number of Directors shall not at any time exceed
the number fixed in accordance with the Constitution.
Newly appointed Directors are subject to election by
Shareholders at the Company’s Annual Meeting in their first
year of appointment.
In view of constantly improving corporate governance
practices and recommendations, in December 2017, upon
recommendation of the Board, a special resolution of
shareholders was passed at the Annual Meeting of the
Company to amend the Constitution of The Bee to allow for
the re-election of 2 Directors by rotation at Annual Meeting of
the Company each year.
Accordingly, at the forthcoming Annual Meeting, upon
recommendation of the Board of Directors, the following shall
be proposed to the Shareholders:
• The appointment of Mr. Madhukhar Gujadhur who has
been appointed by the Board during the year and who
offers himself for election;
• The appointment of Mr. Denis-Claude Pilot who has been
appointed by the Board during the year and who offers
himself for election;
• The appointment of Mr. Sattar Jackaria who has been
appointed by the Board during the year and who offers
himself for election;
• The re-appointment of Mr. Jan Boullé who offers himself for
re-election as Director as per provision of clause 23.7 of the
Constitution of the Company;
• The re-appointment of Mr. Olivier Fayolle who offers himself
for re-election as Director as per provision of clause 23.7 of
the Constitution of the Company.

BOARD INDUCTION
The Board has the responsibility to ensure proper induction
of newly appointed Directors to the Board. Accordingly, as
part of the induction process, upon appointment, newly
appointed Directors receive a complete induction pack from
the Company Secretary, which includes amongst other the
following documents:

• Latest Annual Report of the Company;
• Calendar of meetings for the year;
• Statutory information about the Company; and
• A presentation giving details of investment portfolio,
business activities as well as key figures of the Company.
The CEO and Chairman are also available to meet the newly
appointed Directors on one to one basis for presenting the
various activities and answering to the potential queries that
the new Directors might have.

SUCCESSION PLANNING
The Board recognises that an effective succession planning
has a positive impact on the performance management
as well as long-term strategy of the Company in terms of
ensuring that key positions remained filled with qualified and
competent candidates. Accordingly, the Board is committed to
encouraging and promoting talent within the Company if such
expertise is available internally to ensure business continuity.
The CEO, Mr. Olivier Fayolle has an employment contract with
an indefinite timeframe and the Board believes that under his
leadership, the Company will achieve its strategic objectives.
Furthermore, the CEO has implemented the necessary
measures internally to ensure smooth running of the Company
even in his absence.
Moreover, IBL Ltd, the holding company of The Bee is also
committed to recognising and nurturing talent within executive
and management levels across the Group so as to ensure
that the Group creates opportunities to develop current and
future leaders.

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
The Board encourages all its members to keep updated about
latest trends within the workplace and keep on enhancing
their knowledge and competencies through development
programmes offered by various institutions such as the
Mauritius Institute of Directors (MIoD). In June 2017, a halfday workshop on the new Code of Corporate Governance
was organised by IBL Ltd in collaboration with the MIoD for
the Directors of all the companies within IBL Group including
The Bee. This workshop aimed at familiarising Directors with
the provisions and implications of the new Code of Corporate
Governance. As part of their individual continuous professional
development program, the Directors of The Bee who also
serve on other Boards attended various training sessions and
seminars during the year under review.

• The Company’s Constitution detailing amongst others the
powers & duties of the Board and Directors;
• Extract of Companies Act 2001 listing the duties and
responsibilities of Directors;
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DIRECTORS DUTIES, REMUNERATION AND
PERFORMANCE

agreed that going forward, the first item of the agenda of
each board meeting should deal with Directors’ declaration
of interests.

Details of remuneration paid to Directors during the year
under review are set out in the attendance report schedule
on page 27.

Furthermore, The Bee being registered as a Reporting Issuer
with the Financial Services Commission, its Directors and
their associates are also required to give proper notification
of interests when dealing in the securities of the Company.
A register of insiders is kept by the Company and is available
for consultation, free of charge, during usual office hours at
the Registered Office of the Company situated at 4th Floor,
IBL House, Caudan Waterfront, Port Louis.

BOARD EVALUATION

DIRECTORS’ DUTIES
The Directors are aware of their legal duties. Upon appointment
on the Board, the Directors receive accordingly a complete
induction pack, which includes amongst others:
• An extract of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 pertaining
to the duties and responsibilities of Directors;
• A copy of the Company’s Constitution detailing the powers
and duties of the Board at Clause 24.

INTEREST REGISTER, CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Directors of The Bee use their best endeavours to follow
the Rules of the Development & Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange of Mauritius Ltd.
During the year under review, the Directors and Officers of
the Company did not deal in the shares of The Bee whether
directly or indirectly.
A table showing the direct and indirect interests of the
Directors in the securities of the Company is set out in the
statutory disclosures on page 42 of this report.
The Directors are fully aware of the requirements set out in
Rule 20 of the Development & Enterprise Market Rules which
provides for restrictions on deals during the close periods
as well as Sections 156 and 157 of the Mauritius Companies
Act 2001, which requires appropriate disclosure and restrictions
on share dealing by Directors. Furthermore, one month prior
to the board meetings scheduled for the approval of abridged
accounts, a correspondence is sent by the Company Secretary
to the Directors of the Company reminding them of the
commencement date of the close period and drawing their
attention to the fact that they should not deal in the shares of
the Company during this period.
All the disclosures made by the Directors under the
requirements of Rule 20 of the Development & Enterprise
Market Rules and under Sections 156 and 157 of the Mauritius
Companies Act 2001 are entered in an interest register which
is kept by the Company Secretary.
There is no conflict of interest between the Directors and the
Company and shall such conflicts happen, the Directors have an
obligation to disclose their interests in the Company’s register
of interests so that this conflict can be managed accordingly.
Moreover, Directors are accustomed to declare their interest
during board meetings should there be a particular subject or
transaction in which they might be conflicted by being directly
or indirectly interested or by virtue of other directorships they
hold in other entities in business with The Bee. Accordingly,
during the board meeting held on the 21 May 2018, the Board
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Information pertaining to related party transactions are fully
explained and disclosed on pages 76 and 77, Note 27 of the
Financial Statements.

INFORMATION, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND
INFORMATION SECURITY GOVERNANCE
The Board is responsible for information governance within the
Company and being part of the IBL Group, the management of
information technology and information security governance
are delegated to the Group IT function.

REMUNERATION POLICY
In accordance with the Company’s Constitution and except for
remuneration of Executive Directors, fees are paid to Directors
for holding office. No pre-determined criteria have been set up
for remunerating Executive Directors approaching retirement.
However, the Board will determine such remuneration, as and
when required.

An appraisal of the performance of the Board and Directors
was carried out in year 2014/2015. This appraisal enabled the
Board to take appropriate actions to improve its effectiveness
and functioning.
Pursuant to a decision of the Board taken in February 2018,
it was agreed that an evaluation exercise of the Board and
its Directors would be carried out every 3 years which will
be led by the Chairman. Accordingly, such exercise has been
launched this year and the results would be made available
to the Board for consideration and action during the financial
year 2018/2019.
The Board Evaluation process is conducted by means of a
questionnaire filled by each Director. The main questions
cover the following categories:
• Function of the Board;
• The Company;
• Size, Composition and Independence of the Board;
• Board Meetings and Chairman’s Appraisal;
• Directors’ Individual Assessment/Evaluation;
• Financial and Operational Reporting;
• Compliance and Ethical Framework;
• Risk Assessment; and
• Subsidiary Questions

Fees paid to Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Non-Executive Directors are submitted to the approval of
Shareholders at the Company’s Annual Meeting. Consequently,
at the last Annual Meeting of The Bee, the Shareholders
approved a flat fee of Rs 75,000 per annum payable to
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors. Any proposed change in remuneration of Directors
is submitted to the Shareholders of the Company for approval.

During this process, the Directors will be required to complete
the questionnaire for self-assessment of the performance of
the Board based on the above.

It is the responsibility of the Board upon recommendation
of the Chairman for determining the remuneration of
Executive Directors whilst taking into consideration the
prevailing market conditions, benchmarking within the
industry, the Company’s results, the skills, knowledge,
competencies and qualifications of the Directors.

There is no management agreement between any third party
and the Company or its subsidiary.

Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to share options or
bonus associated with the performance of the Company.
The Company is in the process of setting up a long-term
remuneration plan for its executives and further details will be
provided once approved by the Board.

The Board believes that the results of this evaluation would
allow it to be more efficient and improve its functioning in
terms of good governance practices.

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

RISK GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
For The Bee, risk management involves identifying the
prominent risks faced by the Company, defining the appetite
for risk in light of the rewards associated with them and setting
up appropriate risk mitigation and monitoring measures.
The Board is responsible for ensuring that the system of
controls of the Company is sufficient and appropriate in
order to mitigate the risks which may impact its objectives.
The Board confirms that there is an ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the various risks faced
by the Company.

The Board is also responsible for the Company’s internal
controls, which is designed to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatements and losses. The Bee’s internal
control system consists of resources, behaviours, procedures
and initiatives tailored to the specifics of the Company. The
Company maintains a system of financial control designed to
provide assurance regarding the keeping of proper accounting
records and the reliability of financial information used within
the business and for publication.
In conducting its annual review of the effectiveness of risk
management, the Board considers the key findings from the
ongoing monitoring and reporting processes, management
assertions and independent assurance reports. The Board also
takes into account of material changes and trends in the risk
profile and considers whether the control system, including
reporting, adequately supports the Board in achieving its risk
management objectives.
During the year the Board considered the Company’s
responsiveness to changes within its business environment
and is accordingly satisfied that there is an ongoing process,
which has been operational.
Some of the prominent risks to which the Company is exposed
and the correlated mitigation measures are detailed below.
(i) Investment risk
Investment risk is viewed as the probability of a particular
investment causing losses or generating returns not
commensurate with the risks associated with it.
The Board manages the investment risk by setting up
appropriate risk mitigation measures such as portfolio
concentration limits, portfolio diversification, performance
monitoring and benchmarking.
The Board has set up an Investment Committee to mitigate
and monitor investment risk, which is viewed as the largest
strategic risk faced by the Company. The Investment
Committee has the duty to assist the Board in evaluating
investment-related projects so as to ensure that investment
decisions are aligned with the Company’s strategy
and produces the desired returns on investment. The
Investment Committee monitors the controllability of the
risks associated with investment decisions taken to ensure
that they are in tolerance with the Company’s risk appetite.
The Investment Committee ensures that investment
appraisals performed by the management are always
performed professionally, objectively and transparently. It
also ensures that appropriate due diligence is performed,
and relevant legal agreements are entered into, before any
investment is made.
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RISK GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL (CONT’D)
(i) Investment risk (Cont’d)
During the year, the Board also approved the appointment of
an external asset management firm to manage the Company’s
existing portfolio of listed securities. This allows the Company
to focus its resources on the implementation of its core
private equity strategy while ensuring a professional and
active management of its existing investment portfolio. The
external investment manager operates on the basis of welldefined investment policy guidelines approved by the Board
and will moderate investment risk through a careful selection
of securities within specified limits. The Investment Committee
monitors and assesses the performance of the external
investment manager on a regular and systematic basis.
(ii) Country risk
Since The Bee’s asset base is almost entirely composed of
Mauritian investments, the Company is strongly exposed
to the performance of the local economy. The Board is of
the opinion that, considering the scale and the resources
available to the Company, the risks associated with private
equity investments in foreign geographies would generally
outweigh the benefits of such geographical diversification
for the Company.
(iii) Operational risk
Operational risks are those risks resulting from the
internal inadequacies of a company or a breakdown in its
controls, operations or procedures, which result into losses
being suffered. Operational risks arise mainly as a result
of portfolio companies being engaged in industrial and
commercial activities. To mitigate this risk, The Bee ensures
that the management of portfolio companies have adequate
control and processes in place.
(iv) IT risk
The Company relies on IT systems and applications for their
daily operations. There can be the risk of cyber threats where
the Company can be exposed to downtime of operations,
ransom ware threats and loss of confidential data.
There is also the risk of loss of data following IT system failure
or theft of data. As we are living in a highly technological
world, cyber attacks are becoming more frequent.
Therefore, to mitigate this risk, being part of IBL Group,
the Company will implement the Business Continuity Plan
of IBL Ltd in case of IT failure. Additionally, there are regular
communications to raise the consciousness of staffs in the
event of suspicious mails and attachments being circulated.
(v) Fraud risk
Given the small structure of the Company, management has
implemented internal procedures to prevent fraud.
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(vi) Compliance risk
Losses may arise as a result of non-compliance with
laws, regulations and policies. The Company Secretary
is responsible for ensuring that the Company adheres
to company law and to the rules of the Stock Exchange
of Mauritius. Furthermore, The Bee has in place a legal
advisory service agreement covering, amongst others, the
monitoring of changes in legislation and regulations, which
allows the Company to take corrective actions when needed.
The Company also actively monitor new developments to
the regulatory environment.
(vii) Litigation risk
The Company investing in other companies can be
associated with disputes and could be involved in litigation
in the future. This risk is mitigated as proper due diligence is
made on potential investee companies to ensure there are
no such risks. Additionally, the Company ensures that private
equity investments are documented with appropriate legal
agreements so as to protect the Company’s investment in
case of litigation.
(viii) Currency risk
The Company undertakes certain transactions denominated
in foreign currencies. Exposures to exchange rate fluctuations
arise. The Company has no major risks to currency as there
are only some immaterial balances in foreign currency.
(ix) Interest rate risk
The Company and its subsidiary (‘The Group’) are exposed to
interest rate risk mainly through its investments in interest
bearing securities such as treasury bills, corporate bonds
and term deposits. The Group manages its interest rate risk
through established limits of exposure to fixed and variable
interest rates and through established parameters on the
average duration of the portfolio.
(x) Market risk
The Company’s listed equity securities are susceptible to
market price risk arising from uncertainties about future
values of investment securities.
The stock market is strongly dependent upon the ongoing
changes in the macroeconomic environment which ultimately
affect the market capitalisation of listed companies. Despite
these market forces being outside management ability to
control, the Board monitors the macroeconomic changes
and takes investment decisions to ensure that the value of
the investment portfolio is preserved.
During the year under review, the Company has appointed
an external investment management firm to mitigate the
market risk associated to the listed equity portfolio.

RISK GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL (CONT’D)
(xi) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is mainly attributable to trade
receivables of the subsidiary (FAST), loans to associated
companies and investments in corporate bonds.
Before accepting any new customer, the Credit Control
Department of FAST assesses the credit quality of the
customer and defines the terms and credit limits accordingly.
The Group evaluates concentration of risks with respect to
trade receivables as low, as its customers are diversified and
located in well-established industries and markets.
Credit risk arising from loans to associated companies and
investment in bonds are mitigated by appropriate credit
analysis, counterparty exposure limits and appropriate
rewards for any credit risk undertaken.
Refer to Note 29 of the Financial Statements for more details
on the Group’s financial risks.
(xii) Human resource risk
As an investment management company, human capital
is viewed as one of the main inputs through which the
Company develops its business model. As such, attracting
and retaining key specialists are strategic priorities for
the Company. Given its size and structure, The Bee’s
requirements in terms of human capital is however limited
to a small number of qualified professionals, therefore
the Board is of the opinion that the likelihood of a serious
human resource risk occurring is low.
(xiii) Safety, health and environment risks
The Bee, being an investment Company, has a limited number
of employees, therefore the Board does not consider it of
relevance to implement safety, health and environmental
measures in the Company itself. Nevertheless, The Bee
and its subsidiary company form part of the IBL Group of
companies which believes in providing and maintaining a
safe and healthy work environment for all its employees.
The IBL Group through its established policies encourages
the enhancement of safety and health standards in
the workplace.

Auditors should observe the highest standards of business
and professional ethics and in particular their independence
should not be impaired in any way.

External Audit
Deloitte has been the external auditor of the Company for
the past 10 years. Following adoption of the Finance Act 2016
and subsequent regulation published in Government Notice
No. 64 of 2017, listed companies are required to rotate their
auditors every seven years. Although the Act gives a two-year
transition period for the rotation, The Group, as practice of
good governance, has undertaken the process of rotating its
auditors for the financial year ending 30 June 2019.

Internal Audit
Given the size and structure of the Company, the nature of its
operations and the existing internal controls, it is considered
that the oversight of the Audit & Risk Committee is appropriate
in that regard for the Company for the time being. An evaluation
of the risks of the Company has been recommended to be
done to assess the benefits of such a function in the context
of the Company. A tender exercise has been launched to
identify potential service providers in that regard. The Internal
Auditor, if appointed, would have the responsibility to assess
the internal controls and report on a regular basis to the
Audit & Risk Committee. The latter would determine their
scope of work and accordingly, proper access to the records,
management or employees would be given to them in order to
perform their duties in the required manner.

Non-Audit Services
Non-audit services are provided by the external auditors.
The nature of the service provided relates to provision of
tax services to its subsidiary. The amount paid has been
disclosed in the ‘Auditor’s Remuneration’ section on page 43.
The auditor’s objectivity and independence are not impaired
while providing these non-audit services as different teams
provide the different services.

AUDIT
In May 2018, the Board has approved the setting up of an
Audit & Risk Committee. The role of the Committee has been
described on page 27.
The Board is responsible for the appointment and if necessary,
the removal of auditors. Audit fees are set in a manner
that enables an effective audit on behalf of Shareholders.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER KEY STAKEHOLDERS

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
By regularly disseminating information to the market concerning the Company’s performance and financial position throughout
the year, the Board of The Bee ensures that a high degree of transparency is preserved. The calendar hereunder illustrates the
important shareholders’ events:

THE BEE’S KEY STAKEHOLDERS
The diagram depicts the key stakeholders of The Bee.

ENTREPRENEURSHIP
ECOSYSTEM

Annual Meeting of
Shareholders

Publication of
half-year results

PORTFOLIO
COMPANIES

EMPLOYEES

Publication of results
for the 9 months to
31 Mar 18
and declaration
of dividend

Publication of full
year results to
30 Jun 18

Annual Meeting of
Shareholders

Release of Q1
results 30 Sep 18

Financial year End

STAKEHOLDERS

Dec
17
GOVERNMENT
REGULATORY
AUTHORITIES

SUPPLIERS

SHAREHOLDERS

SHAREHOLDERS’ AGREEMENT
The Company has not entered into any such agreement with any of its Shareholders for the year under review.

Feb
18

May
18

Jun
18

Sep
18

Nov
18

Nov
18

As required by Law, The Bee produces and publishes quarterly, half-yearly and annual reports which are also submitted to
the Stock Exchange of Mauritius and the Financial Services Commission. In addition to compliance with periodic reportorial
requirements, the Board places great importance on an open and transparent communication with all the stakeholders of the
Company and as such ensures that the Company promptly discloses to its stakeholders and the public at large, any market
sensitive information.
One of the most important Shareholders’ related events is the Annual Meeting of the Company. This meeting, which is the
principle forum for dialogue with Shareholders, aims at providing to all Shareholders up-to-date and comprehensive information
in an efficient manner. The Shareholders of the Company are encouraged to attend the Annual Meeting to discuss with the
Directors and Chairman of the Company about various issues. The External Auditors of the Company namely Messrs. Deloitte
are invited to attend the Annual Meeting and are available to Shareholders to answer questions relevant to their scope of work.
Moreover, even if the Company itself does not have a dedicated website, all important documents are available on its holding
company’s website: www.iblgroup.com/content/financial-other-services.
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STATEMENT OF
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POLITICAL DONATIONS

Name of Public Interest Entity (PIE): The Bee Equity Partners Ltd (‘The Bee’ or ‘the Company’)

The Company did not make any political donation during the year under review (2017: Nil).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the year under review, the Company has donated Rs 87,869 to Fondation Joseph Lagesse as part of its Corporate Social
Responsibility contribution. Please refer to Note 19 in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

(Section 75 (3) of the Financial Reporting Act)

Reporting Period: 30 June 2018
We, the Directors of The Bee, confirm that to the best of our knowledge that the Company has complied with all of its obligations
and requirements under the Code of Corporate Governance.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION
The Directors and Officers of the Company are covered by a Directors’ and Officers’ indemnity insurance cover.

SHARE REGISTRY AND TRANSFER OFFICE
OCORIAN CORPORATE ADMINISTRATORS LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS ABAX CORPORATE ADMINISTRATORS LTD)
The Share Registry and Transfer Office, Ocorian Corporate Administrators Limited (formerly known as Abax Corporate Administrators Ltd),
is responsible for maintaining the Company’s register of Shareholders. Hence, for any enquiries with regard to shareholding,
such as updating personal details, checking the shareholding and dividend payments, the Shareholders can contact them by
telephone on (230) 403 6000 or in writing at the following address: 6th Floor, Tower A, 1 CyberCity, Ebène.

JEAN-CLAUDE BÉGA		
DENIS-CLAUDE PILOT
Chairman			 Director
21 September 2018

JEAN-CLAUDE BÉGA		
DENIS-CLAUDE PILOT
Chairman			 Director
21 September 2018
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STATEMENT OF
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

STATUTORY
DISCLOSURES

The Board of The Bee Equity Partners Ltd has the pleasure in presenting the Corporate Governance Report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 30 June 2018.

The Directors have the pleasure in presenting the Annual Report of The Bee Equity Partners Ltd and its subsidiary company,
Flacq Associated Stonemasters Limited (“FAST”) together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018.

REPORTING WITH INTEGRITY

STATE OF AFFAIRS AND REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Corporate Governance Report and financial statements in accordance
with applicable laws and regulations.

The main activity of the Company is the holding of investments.
Its subsidiary, FAST, is involved in the production and sale of aggregates and bricks.
The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year is set out on page 50.

(Pursuant to Section 221 of The Companies Act 2001 and Section 88 of The Securities Act 2005)

The Directors confirm that they are aware of their legal duties, accountabilities and acknowledge their responsibilities for:
i.
ii.

Keeping adequate accounting records and maintaining effective internal control systems;
The preparation of financial statements which fairly present the financial position of the Company as at the end of the
financial year and the financial performance and cash flows for that period and which comply with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS);
iii. The use of appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates; and
iv. Ensuring compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance and providing reasons in case of non-compliance with any
requirement of the said Code.
The external auditors are responsible for reporting on whether the financial statements are fairly presented and whether
the principles of the Code of Corporate Governance have been duly applied.
The Directors report that:
i.
ii.

 dequate accounting records and an effective system of internal control and risk management have been maintained;
A
Appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates have been used
consistently;
iii. International Financial Reporting Standards have been adhered to. Any departure has been disclosed, explained and
quantified; and
iv. The principles of the Code of Corporate Governance have been adhered to in all material aspects and reasons provided
for any non-compliance.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

DIVIDEND
A dividend of Rs 0.66 per share was declared for the year ended 30 June 2018 - (30 June 2017: Nil).

DIRECTORS
The name of the Directors of the Company and its subsidiary as at 30 June 2018 were as follows:

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
Jean-Claude Béga (Chairman)
Jan Boullé
Yann Duchesne
Olivier Fayolle
Madhukar Gujadhur - appointed as Director on 13 December 2017
Thierry Lagesse
Denis-Claude Pilot - appointed as Director on 13 December 2017

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY WHO CEASED TO HOLD OFFICE
Dayanidhi Gujadhur – resigned on 5 December 2017

DIRECTORS OF THE SUBSIDIARY FAST
Thierry Lagesse (Chairman)
Jan Boullé - appointed as Director on 6 November 2017
Olivier Fayolle
Christophe Quevauvilliers
Jean Ribet
Stéphane Ulcoq

JEAN-CLAUDE BÉGA		 DENIS-CLAUDE PILOT
Chairman			 Director
21 September 2018
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR OFFICERS’ SHARE INTEREST

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The direct and indirect interests of the Directors and the Senior Officers in the securities of the Company as at 30 June 2018 were
as follows:

Mr. Olivier Fayolle, the Executive Director of the Company, has a service contract with no expiry term with The Bee Equity Partners Ltd.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE
Direct Interests
Shares

Indirect Interests
%

DONATIONS (POLITICAL AND CHARITABLE)

Directors
Jean-Claude Béga

-

-

0.0144

Jan Boullé

-

-

0.0027

Yann Duchesne

-

-

-

Olivier Fayolle

-

-

-

Madhukar Gujadhur

-

-

-

2,944

0.033

0.016

-

-

-

Thierry Lagesse
Denis-Claude Pilot

There was no contract of significance between the Company or its subsidiary and any of their Directors during the year under review.

%

The Company has made only charitable donations of Rs 87,869 during the year (2017: charitable donations of Rs 100,000 and
political donations: Nil) whereas its subsidiary FAST has made donations of Rs 97,707 during the year (2017: Rs 277,403) and
these include the 2% Corporate Social Responsibility contribution.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
The fees paid or payable to the Auditors, for audit and other services were:

2018

Senior Officers
IBL Management Ltd

-

-

-

Deloitte

Mon Loisir Services & Conseils Ltée

-

-

-

The Company

Catherine Gris

-

-

-

The Bee Equity Partners Ltd**

123

0.001

-

Haidar Soogund

-

-

-

The Subsidiary

Nicolas Weiss

-

-

-

Flacq Associated Stonemasters Limited

Mushtaq Oosman

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS
Remuneration and benefits received, or due and receivable, by the Directors from the Company and its subsidiary were as
follows:

Executive
Directors
Rs

Non-Executive
Directors
Rs

30 June 2017
Executive
Directors
Rs

Non-Executive
Directors
Rs

Audit
Rs

Others*
Rs

474,375

-

434,125

-

150,000

10,000

150,000

10,000

Being of the prerogative of the Shareholders, the appointment of the external auditor will be submitted to the next annual
meeting.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
The Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation and gratitude to management and personnel for the work done
during the year.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

The Company
The Bee Equity Partners Ltd

Others*
Rs

* Please refer to the section relating to ‘Non-Audit Services’ in the Corporate Governance Report.
** These figures are inclusive of VAT.

The Directors and the Senior Officers did not hold any shares in its subsidiary whether directly or indirectly.

30 June 2018

2017

Audit
Rs

3,518,991

414,658

3,313,978

437,466

-

114,000

-

144,000

The Subsidiary
Flacq Associated Stonemasters Limited

JEAN-CLAUDE BÉGA		
DENIS-CLAUDE PILOT
Chairman			 Director
21 September 2018
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COMPANY SECRETARY’S
CERTIFICATE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the Company has filed with the Registrar of Companies all such returns
as are required of the Company under the Companies Act 2001.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2018

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE BEE EQUITY PARTNERS LTD

Opinion

DORIS DARDANNE
Per IBL Management Ltd
Company Secretary
21 September 2018

We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of The Bee Equity Partners Ltd (the “Company”) and its
subsidiary (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 83, which comprise the consolidated and separate
statements of financial position as at 30 June 2018, the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity and the consolidated and separate
statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group and the Company as at 30 June 2018, and their consolidated and separate financial performance and their
consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) and in compliance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 and the Financial Reporting Act 2004.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Group and the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountant (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Valuation of investment property

The carrying value of the investment property amounted to
Rs 62,271,000 and the fair value gain in respect of the
investment property recorded in profit for the year was
Rs 16,121,000.
The valuation, based on sales comparison method, disclosed
in Note 6, was arrived at by reference to market evidence of
recent transaction prices for similar properties. In estimating
the fair value of the property, the highest and best use of the
property is its current use.
Significant judgement is required by management in
determining the fair value of the investment property.
Accordingly the valuation of investment property is considered
to be a key audit matter due to the significance of the balance
to the financial statements as a whole, combined with the
judgement associated with determining the fair value.
The Directors have engaged an independent valuer to
determine the fair value of the investment property.
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We assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of management’s independent valuer, and verified the
qualifications of the valuer. We also discussed the scope of
work with management and reviewed the terms of engagement
to determine that there were no matters that could affect
objectivity or impose scope limitations. We confirmed that the
approaches used are consistent with IFRS and industry norms,
and relevant controls were tested.
We have evaluated management’s judgements, in particular:
•

The model used for valuation

We compared the inputs to market data and entity-specific
historical information to confirm the appropriateness of these
judgements.
The carrying value and disclosures pertaining to the fair
valuation of the investment property were found to be
appropriate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE BEE EQUITY PARTNERS LTD (CONT’D)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE BEE EQUITY PARTNERS LTD (CONT’D)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS (CONT’D)

Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)

Other Information

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Determination of fair values and impairment of unquoted investments

Fair values of unquoted investments are determined by using
valuation techniques including third party transactions values,
earnings, net asset value or discounted cash flow, whichever is
considered to be appropriate. The disclosures of fair values of
unquoted investments have been provided in Notes 7, 8, 9 and
29 to the financial statements.

In evaluating the fair values and impairment of unquoted
investments, we reviewed the valuation calculations prepared
by management, and relevant controls were tested.
We performed various procedures, including the following:
•

Such valuation exercise, as applied in the current year, requires
that management makes estimates of discount factors and price
earnings ratio as applicable to the relevant market.

•

Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair values of the unquoted investments.

•

Determining whether the unquoted investments
(available-for-sale investments) held at cost are impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the unquoted
investments. In considering the value in use, the Directors have
taken into consideration the management accounts, approved
budgets and comparable transactions. The actual results
could however differ from the estimates. The disclosures of
impairment of unquoted investments have been provided in
Notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.

•
•

 valuated the appropriateness of the valuation
E
methodology and models used;
Assessed the reasonableness of the valuation
assumptions and tested the underlying source
information of the significant valuation assumptions;
Reviewing appropriateness of discount factors used,
including any illiquidity, size and lack of control
factors;
Tested the mathematical accuracy of the valuation; and
Performed analytical review of management accounts
and approved budgets used for determination of
value in use of unquoted investments

We considered management’s assumptions and the
disclosures relating to the fair values and impairment of
unquoted investments to be appropriate.

Management has disclosed the accounting judgements and
estimates used for fair valuation and impairment of investments
in Note 4 to the financial statements.
Accordingly the valuation of unquoted investments is considered
to be a key audit matter.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Mauritius Companies Act 2001
In accordance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, we report as follows:
•
•
•

we have no relationship with, or interest in, the Company and its subsidiary other than in our capacity as auditor;
we have obtained all information and explanations that we have required; and
in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as appears from our examination of those records.

The Financial Reporting Act 2004
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Corporate Governance Report. Our responsibility is to report to the extent
of compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance as disclosed in the annual report and on whether the disclosure is
consistent with the requirements of the Code.

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities in respect of the Preparation of Financial Statements, Statutory Disclosures and the Secretary’s Certificate, which
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and other reports to be included in the Annual Report, which are expected
to be made available to us after that date. The other information does not include the consolidated and separate financial
statements, the Corporate Governance Report and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements and on the Corporate Governance Report does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed
on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
When we read the other reports which are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report,
if we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance.
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the requirements of the Mauritius
Companies Act 2001 and the Financial Reporting Act 2004. They are also responsible for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the
Group and the Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s and the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:
•

In our opinion, the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report is consistent with the requirements of the Code.

•
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control of the Group and
the Company;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE BEE EQUITY PARTNERS LTD (CONT’D)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
At 30 June 2018

Notes

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS (CONT’D)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Cont’d)
•
•

•

•

 valuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
E
disclosures made by management;
Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the ability of the Group and the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern;
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
This report is made solely to the Company’s Shareholders, as a body, in accordance with section 205 of the Mauritius Companies
Act 2001. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s Shareholders those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s Shareholders as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

5(a)

67,176

68,953

424

Intangible assets

5(b)

20

76

-

522
-

Investment property

6

62,271

46,150

62,271

46,150

Investment in subsidiary

7

-

-

94,783

88,181

Investments in associates

8

-

-

9,998

-

Investments in securities

9

284,870

226,905

284,870

226,905

Deferred tax assets

10

99

-

99

-

414,436

342,084

452,445

361,758

Current assets
Inventories

11

8,975

12,859

-

-

Trade and other receivables

12

75,250

51,647

46,630

37,485

Current tax asset

19

-

78

-

-

Investments in securities

9

28,051

-

28,051

-

Cash and cash equivalents

67,412

143,785

62,838

141,850

179,688

208,369

137,519

179,335

594,124

550,453

589,964

541,093

8,821

8,821

8,821

8,821

Revaluation and other reserves

126,314

113,723

189,134

159,943

Retained earnings

406,740

386,489

387,219

368,226

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

541,875

509,033

585,174

536,990

14,868

14,565

-

-

556,743

523,598

585,174

536,990

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Stated capital

13

Non-controlling interests
Total equity
Non-current liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations

14

6,379

6,844

849

-

Obligation under finance lease

15

2,678

3,848

-

-

Deferred tax liabilities

16

4,645

4,840

-

-

13,702

15,532

849

-

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

17

17,903

9,181

2,997

3,046

Obligation under finance lease

15

1,170

1,085

-

-

Bank overdraft

18

828

-

-

-

Current tax liabilities

19

3,778

1,057

944

1,057

23,679

11,323

3,941

4,103

594,124

550,453

589,964

541,093

Total equity and liabilities

Approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 21 September 2018.
DELOITTE			
Chartered Accountants		

JACQUES DE C. DU MÉE, ACA
Licensed by FRC

21 September 2018		

JEAN-CLAUDE BÉGA
Chairman			

DENIS-CLAUDE PILOT
Director

The notes on pages 53 to 83 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditor’s report on pages 45 to 48.
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STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018

Notes

Investment income

21

THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

13,535

21,457

24,860

30,516

Sale of goods

103,864

79,557

-

-

Total revenue

117,399

101,014

24,860

30,516

Notes

Stated
Capital
Rs’000

Fair value
reserves
Rs’000

Retained
earnings
Rs’000

Total
Rs’000

Noncontrolling
interests
Rs’000

Total
Rs’000
523,853

(70,206)

(56,495)

8,821

155,228

342,581

506,630

17,223

Administrative expenses

(32,442)

(25,325)

(15,307)

(11,133)

Profit for the year

-

-

44,469

44,469

1,396

83,728

12,216

82,417

Other comprehensive loss for the year

-

(41,505)

(37,388)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year

-

(41,505)

22

13,499

Impairment losses on investments in associates

8

-

Impairment losses on available-for-sale investments

9

Finance income

23

Finance costs

24

Share of loss of associates

8

Provision for impairment of loans to associates

12

Profit before tax

(520)
5,548
(335)

19

Profit for the year

25

(8,864)
4,781

(520)

(8,864)

Disposal of subsidiary

4,198

Dividends

(415)

-

-

(30,608)

-

-

-

(11,810)

(4,586)
28,357

49,226
(3,361)
45,865

26,009
(1,194)
24,815

47,936
(1,111)
46,825

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

22

391

36,367
(77,872)

28,800
391

14

913

(839)

-

16

(155)

142

-

(77,872)

-

-

(1,728)

(1,728)

-

-

(2,190)

(2,190)

At 30 June 2017

8,821

113,723

386,489

509,033

14,565

523,598

At 1 July 2017

8,821

113,723

386,489

509,033

14,565

523,598
28,357

Profit for the year

-

-

25,463

25,463

2,894

Other comprehensive income for the year

-

12,591

610

13,201

148

13,349

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

12,591

26,073

38,664

3,042

41,706

20

-

-

8,821

126,314

-

(42,202)

29,191

(38,761)

Total comprehensive income for the year

41,706

3,663

54,006

8,064

Owners of the company

25,463

44,469

24,815

Non-controlling interests

2,894

1,396

-

-

28,357

45,865

24,815

46,825

46,825

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the company

38,664

2,403

54,006

8,064

Non-controlling interests

3,042

1,260

-

-

41,706

3,663

54,006

8,064
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At 1 July 2016

2.89

5.04

(5,822)

(2,739)

541,875

(8,561)

14,868

556,743

Stated
Capital
Rs’000

Fair value
reserves
Rs’000

Retained
earnings
Rs’000

Total
Rs’000
528,926

8,821

198,704

321,401

Profit for the year

-

-

46,825

Other comprehensive loss for the year

-

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:

The notes on pages 53 to 83 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditor’s report on pages 45 to 48.

(5,822)
406,740

THE COMPANY

-

13,349

25

3,663

39,111

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

Earnings per share (in Rs)

1,260

-

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Deferred tax on remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations

2,403

45,865
(42,202)

-

20

Notes

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations

(136)

-

Dividends

12,200

43,908

(42,066)

-

At 30 June 2018
7,8,9

(561)

(11,810)

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

Increase/(decrease) in fair value of securities
Reclassification to profit or loss on disposal of available-for-sale
securities

At 1 July 2016

4,760

32,943

Tax expense

(6,780)

-

Attributable to owners of the Company

Operating expenses
Other net operating income

-

THE GROUP

-

(38,761)

46,825
(38,761)

46,825

8,064

At 30 June 2017

8,821

159,943

368,226

536,990

At 1 July 2017

8,821

159,943

368,226

536,990

-

-

24,815

24,815

Other comprehensive income for the year

-

29,191

-

29,191

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

29,191

24,815

54,006

Profit for the year

Dividends
At 30 June 2018

20

(38,761)

-

-

-

8,821

189,134

(5,822)
387,219

(5,822)
585,174

The notes on pages 53 to 83 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditor’s report on pages 45 to 48.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018

Year Ended 30 June 2018

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Loss/(profit) on disposal of available-for-sale investments
Reclassification to profit or loss on disposal of available-for-sale securities
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Profit on disposal of subsidiary
Fair value gain on revaluation of investment property
Share of loss in associates
Impairment losses on investments in associates
Impairment losses on available-for-sale investments
Finance income
Interest expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible asset
Movement in retirement benefit obligations
Allowance for doubtful debt
Provision for impairment of loans to associates
Cash generated from operations before working capital changes
Working capital changes:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations
Retirement benefit paid
Interest paid
Tax paid
Net cash generated from operating activities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of investments
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Disposal of subsidiary
Interest received
Purchase of property plant and equipment
Acquisition of held-to-maturity investments
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests
Dividend paid to owners of the company
Finance lease
Net cash used in financing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 July
Cash and cash equivalents as at 30 June
Represented by:
Cash in hand and at bank
Bank overdrafts

The notes on pages 53 to 83 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditor’s report on pages 45 to 48.
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THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

32,943

49,226

26,009

47,936

3,577
391
(16,121)
520
(5,548)
335
8,209
56
1,487
25,849

(219)
(77,872)
(305)
(1,009)
(4,086)
30,608
6,780
8,864
(4,781)
415
7,891
64
644
976
11,810
29,006

3,577
391
(16,121)
520
(4,760)
98
849
10,563

(219)
(77,872)
(169)
(4,086)
37,388
8,864
(4,198)
15
11,810
19,469

3,883
(7,780)
8,722
30,674
(1,041)
(335)
(2,238)
27,060

(109)
(11,869)
2,292
19,320
(422)
(415)
(835)
17,648

6,673
(49)
17,187
(1,406)
15,781

(11,889)
67
7,647
(457)
7,190

17,781
5,548
(6,432)
(111,512)
(94,615)

96,663
305
(413)
4,714
(8,939)
92,330

17,781
4,760
(111,512)
(88,971)

96,663
3,800
4,131
(537)
104,057

(2,739)
(5,822)
(1,085)
(9,646)

(2,191)
(1,007)
(3,198)

(5,822)
(5,822)

-

(79,012)
141,850
62,838

111,247
30,603
141,850

(77,201)
143,785
66,584

67,412
(828)
66,584

106,780
37,005
143,785

143,785
143,785

62,838
62,838

141,850
141,850

1. INCORPORATION AND ACTIVITIES
The Bee Equity Partners Ltd (the “Company”) is a public company incorporated in Mauritius and listed on the Development
Enterprises Market (DEM) of the Stock Exchange of Mauritius.
The registered office and the place of business of the Company are situated at 4th Floor, IBL House, Caudan Waterfront, Port Louis.
The main activities of the Company is the holding of investments. Its subsidiary, Flacq Associated Stonemasters Limited (‘’FAST’’)
is involved in the production and sale of aggregates and bricks.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRSs)
In the current year, the Group and the Company have applied all new and revised IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) of the IASB that are
relevant to Company and the Group’s operations and effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 July 2017.
New and revised IFRSs applied with no material effect on the financial statements
The following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted in these financial statements. Their
adoption has not had any significant impacts on the amounts reported in these financial statements but may affect the
accounting for future transactions or arrangements.
IAS 7		

Statement of Cash Flows - Amendments as result of the Disclosure initiative

IAS 12

Income taxes - Amendments regarding the recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses

IFRS 12
		

Disclosure of interests in other entities - Amendments resulting from annual improvements 2014-2016
cycle (Clarifying scope)

Relevant new and revised Standards in issue not yet effective
					
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following relevant new and revised Standards were in issue but
effective on annual periods beginning on or after the respective dates as indicated:
IAS 12
		

Income Taxes – Amendments resulting from annual improvements 2015-2017 Cycle (income tax consequences
of dividends) (effective 1 January 2019)

IAS 19
		

Employee benefits – Amendments regarding plan amendments, curtailments or settlements (effective
1 January 2019)

IAS 28
		

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments regarding the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture (deferred indefinitely)

IAS 28
		

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements 2014-2016
Cycle (clarifying certain fair value measurements) (effective 1 January 2018)

IAS 39
		
		
		

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Amendments to permit an entity to elect to continue
to apply the hedge accounting requirements in IAS 39 for a fair value hedge of the interest rate exposure of
a portion of a portfolio of financial assets or financial liabilities when IFRS 9 is applied, and to extend the fair
value option to certain contracts that meet the ‘own use’ scope exception (effective 1 January 2018)

IFRS 7
		

Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Deferral of mandatory effective date of IFRS 9 and amendments to
transition disclosures (effective 1 January 2018)

IFRS 7
		

Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Additional hedge accounting disclosures (and consequential amendments)
resulting from the introduction of the hedge accounting chapter in IFRS 9 (effective 1 January 2018)

IFRS 9
		
		

Financial Instruments: Finalised version, incorporating requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment, general hedge accounting and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
(effective 1 January 2018)

IFRS 9

Financial Instruments: Amendments regarding the interaction of IFRS 4 and IFRS 9 (effective 1 January 2018)

IFRS 9
		
		
		

Financial Instruments: Reissue to incorporate a hedge accounting chapter and permit the early application of
the requirements for presenting in other comprehensive income the ‘own credit’ gains or losses on the
financial liabilities designated under the fair value option without early applying other requirements of IFRS 9
(effective 1 January 2018)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 30 June 2018

Year Ended 30 June 2018

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRSs) (CONT’D)
Relevant new and revised Standards in issue not yet effective (Cont’d)
IFRS 9
		

Financial Instruments: Amendments regarding prepayment features with negative compensation and
modifications of financial liabilities (effective 1 January 2019)

IFRS 10
		

Consolidated Financial Statements - Amendments regarding the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture (deferred indefinitely)

IFRS 15

Revenue from Contracts with Customers - Original issue (effective 1 January 2018)

IFRS 15

Revenue from Contracts with Customers - Clarifications to IFRS 15 (effective 1 January 2018)

IFRS 16

Leases - Original issue (effective 1 January 2019)

IFRIC 22

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration (effective 1 January 2018)

IFRIC 23

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (effective 1 January 2019)

The Directors anticipate that these Standards and Interpretations will be applied on their effective dates in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in future periods. The Directors have not yet assessed the potential impact of the application of
these amendments.

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below:
a. Basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and under
the historical cost convention except for:
i. the revaluation of certain non-current assets and financial instruments
ii. investment properties which are stated at fair value
iii. available-for-sale securities which are stated at fair value
Fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety which are
described as follows:
•

 evel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
L
at the measurement date;
• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and
• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
				
b. Investment in subsidiary
Separate financial statements
Investment in subsidiary is recognised at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses on such security is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in fair value reserve until the security is disposed of or found to be impaired,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. On disposal, the profit
or loss recognised in the profit or loss is the difference between the proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset.

All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full.
Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity therein. The interest of
non-controlling shareholders may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the
amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if the results in the non-controlling interests have
a deficit balance.
Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred directly to retained earnings) in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of. The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity.
c. Investments in associates
Associated companies are entities in which the Company or the Group has significant influence but which are neither a
subsidiary nor a joint venture of the Company or the Group. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but there is no control or joint control over those policies.
Separate financial statements – Change in accounting policy
Investments in associates have been historically carried at cost less any impairment in value. As from this financial year,
management has decided to fair value the investments in associates since this would be in line with the Company’s core
activities (faithful representation) and would ensure more consistency in measurement policy. Management has assessed
the impact of this change in accounting policy and concluded that retrospective application of fair values for the investments
does not have any effect on the figures disclosed in the financial statements as the carrying amounts approximated their
fair values.
Consolidated financial statements

Basis of consolidation

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using the equity method
of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with
IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Under the equity method, investments in associates
are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s
share of the net assets of the associate, less any impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an associate
in excess of the Group’s interest in that associate are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary (the “Group”)
as at 30 June each year. Control is achieved where the company has power over the investee, is exposed or has rights to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included
within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of that investment.

Consolidated financial statements
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Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the parent company, using consistent accounting policies. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by other members of the Group.
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iv. Effective interest method

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

c. Investments in associates (Cont’d)
Consolidated financial statements (Cont’d)
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

v. Derecognition of financial assets

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the relevant associate.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire;
or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

The accounting policies of the associates are in line with those used by the Group.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts
it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

d. Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the Group has become party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instruments.
Financial assets
Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial assets and ‘loans and
receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition.
i.

Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets
Unlisted shares and listed securities held by the Group that are traded in an active market are classified as being AFS
and are stated at fair value. Fair value is determined as described in Note 29.
Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in fair value reserve with the exception of impairment losses, interest calculated using the effective
interest method and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets, which are recognised directly in profit
or loss. Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends
is established.
The fair value of AFS monetary assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the reporting date. The change in fair value attributable to translation differences that result
from a change in amortised cost of the asset is recognised in profit or loss, and other changes are recognised in equity.
Available-for-sale investments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost less impairment loss.

ii. Held-to-maturity investments
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payment and fixed maturities are classified as held-to-maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. After initial measurement held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment, with revenue
recognised on an effective yield basis.
iii. Loans and receivables
Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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Financial liabilities
i.

Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangement.

ii. Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
iii. Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with
interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on the initial recognition.
iv. Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire.
e. Impairment of assets
At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. Assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount
which is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment of assets are
grouped at the lowest level, for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.
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3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Deferred tax

e. Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred income tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available.
Such assets and liabilities are not recorded if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

For unlisted shares classified as AFS, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
For all other assets, including redeemable notes classified as AFS and finance lease receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include:
•
•
•

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.
g. Property, plant and equipment

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

All property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Certain plant and equipment are subsequently shown at fair
value, based on valuation made by external independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation for plant and equipment. All
other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment losses.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line method to write off the cost of each asset, or the revalued amount, to its
residual value over its estimated useful life as follows:

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
The principal temporary differences arise from depreciation on property, plant and equipment, revaluations of certain
non-current assets, tax losses carried forward and on retirement benefit obligations.
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20% p.a.

10% - 33% p.a.

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item or property, plant and equipment is determined as a difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the assets and is recognised in profit or loss.
h. Investment properties
Investment properties, which are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, are stated at their fair value
at the reporting date. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value on investment property are included in profit
or loss for the period in which they arise.
i.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable,
direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Motor vehicles

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount.

f. Taxation
The income tax expense represents the current tax provision and the movement in deferred tax.

5% - 10% p.a.

Land is not depreciated.

With the exception of AFS equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
In respect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses previously recognised through profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

Freehold land and buildings
Plant and equipment

j.

Retirement and other benefit obligations
The present value of retirement gratuity as provided under The Employment Rights Act 2008 is recognised in the statement
of financial position as a non-current liability.
Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the statement of financial position
with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement
recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to
profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
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3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
j.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:
•
•
•

Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements)
Net interest expense or income
Remeasurement

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item administrative expenses
as part of staff costs. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.
State plan
Contributions to the National Pension Scheme are charged to the profit or loss in the period in which they fall due.
k. Revenue recognition
Sales are recognised upon delivery of products and customer acceptance, if any, or performance of services, net of Value
Added Tax and discounts, and after eliminating sales within the Group.
Other revenues earned by the Group and Company are recognised on the following bases:
•
•
•
l.

Transactions and balances

Retirement and other benefit obligations (Cont’d)

Interest income - as it accrues (taking into account the effective yield on the asset) unless collectibility is in doubt.
Dividend income - when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.
Rental income - on an accrual basis.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group and Company have a present or constructive obligation as a result of past events
which it is probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

m. Related parties
Related parties include individuals and companies where the individual or company has the ability directly or indirectly, to
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
Affiliates are related parties of the company which cannot be considered as parent or subsidiary as defined by IAS 27, as
associate and joint venture as defined by IAS 28, or as key management personnel as defined by IAS 24.
n. Intangible assets
Computer software is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring into use the specific software.
Amortisation is provided at 17% on reducing balance method.
o. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash at bank and bank overdrafts. Cash equivalents are short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value.
p. Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction.
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
the fair value was determined.
q. Leases
Where assets are assigned by finance lease agreements that give right to ownership when the last lease payment is made, the
assets are treated as if they have been purchased outright at values which include lease payments, residual value and sundry
lease charges. The cost of assets held under finance lease is capitalised within the appropriate property and equipment and
depreciation is provided in accordance with the company’s accounting policy for the category of assets concerned.
The interest cost is charged over the term of the lease to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
the capital element of the future lease payments is shown as short term and long term obligations under the finance lease.

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Directors and management to exercise judgement
in the process of applying the accounting policies. It also requires the use of accounting estimates and assumptions that
may affect the reported amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Judgements and estimates are continuously
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations and assumptions concerning
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The actual results could, by definition therefore,
often differ from the related accounting estimates.
Where applicable, the notes to the financial statements set out areas where management has applied a higher degree
of judgement that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements, or estimations and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.
Valuation of investment property
The Company measures its investment property at fair value based on periodic valuations by an external independent valuer
and as estimated by the Directors based on reference to their knowledge on the current market evidence of transaction
prices for similar properties. In arriving at the valuation, assumptions and economic estimates have to be made. The actual
results could differ from their estimates and the Directors consider they have used their best estimates to arrive at fair value
of the investment property.
Determination of fair value
Fair values of unquoted financial instruments are determined by using valuation techniques including third party transactions
values, earnings, net asset value or discounted cash flow, whichever is considered to be appropriate. Such valuation exercise
requires that the Company makes estimates of future cash flows, discount rates and price earnings ratio as applicable
to the relevant market. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair values of the financial
instruments. The Directors believe that the carrying values reflect the fair values as at 30 June 2018.

Items included in the financial statements are measured using Mauritian Rupees, the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“functional currency”). The financial statements of The Group and Company are
presented in Mauritian Rupees, which is the Group’s and the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

60

THE BEE EQUITY PARTNERS LTD | ANNUAL REPORT 2018

THE BEE EQUITY PARTNERS LTD | ANNUAL REPORT 2018

61

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 30 June 2018

Year Ended 30 June 2018

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONT’D)

5. (a) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)
THE COMPANY

Impairment of unquoted investments

Plant and equipment

Determining whether the investment in unquoted securities is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the
investment. In considering the value in use, the Directors have taken into consideration the management accounts, approved
budgets and comparable transactions. The actual results could however, differ from the estimates.

Rs’000

Cost
At 1 July 2017
At 30 June 2018

Allowance for doubtful debts
An allowance for doubtful debts is determined using a combination of factors to ensure that the trade receivables are
not overstated due to uncollectibility. The allowance for doubtful debts for all customers is based on a variety of factors,
including the overall quality and ageing of the receivables, continuing credit evaluation of the customer’s financial conditions.
Also, specific provisions for individual accounts are recorded when the Group becomes aware of the customer’s inability to
meet its financial obligations such as in the case of deterioration on the customers operating results or financial position.

537

Additions

537

Depreciation
At 1 July 2017

15

Charge for the year
At 30 June 2018

98
113

Net book value

5. (a) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
THE GROUP

Cost and valuation
At 1 July 2016
Additions
Disposal of subsidiary
At 30 June 2017
Additions
At 30 June 2018

Freehold
land and
buildings

Plant and
equipment

Motor
Vehicles

Total

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

39,562

95,066

833

135,461

2,230

6,710

-

8,940

(2,221)

-

(2,221)

41,792

99,555

833

142,180

5,519

913

-

6,432

47,311

100,468

833

148,612

Charge for the year
At 30 June 2017
Charge for the year
At 30 June 2018

424

At 30 June 2017

522

The Directors have reviewed the carrying values of the property, plant and equipment and are of the opinion that at 30 June 2018,
the carrying values have not suffered any impairment.

5. (b) INTANGIBLE ASSETS
THE GROUP

12,335

52,418

583

65,336

207

7,517

167

7,891

12,542

59,935

750

73,227

292

7,834

83

8,209

12,834

67,769

833

81,436

Computer software
Rs’000

Cost
At 1 July 2017

818

Additions
At 30 June 2018

Depreciation
At 1 July 2016

At 30 June 2018

818

Amortisation
At 1 July 2017

742

Charge for the year
At 30 June 2018

56
798

Net book value

Net book value
At 30 June 2018

34,477

32,699

-

67,176

At 30 June 2017

29,250

39,620

83

68,953

At 30 June 2018

20

At 30 June 2017

76

The property, plant and equipment of the subsidiary have been pledged to secure banking facilities. The subsidiary’s obligation
under finance lease is secured by the lessor’s title to the leased asset. The carrying value of plant and equipment held under
finance lease at 30 June 2018 amounts to Rs 4,426,449 (2017: Rs 4,985,580).

Non cash-transactions
Additions for the year are financed as follows:

Cash disbursement
Finance lease
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2018

2017

Rs’000

Rs’000

6,432

8,939

-

-

6,432

8,939
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6. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

7. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY (CONT’D)
THE GROUP & COMPANY
2018

2017

Rs’000

Rs’000

At 1 July

46,150

42,064

Gain on fair value of investment property

16,121

4,086

At 30 June

62,271

46,150

At fair value

(a) The investment property was revalued at 30 June 2018 by Mr. Noor Dilmohamed, Bsc (Appl) Val, Dip L.S. FAPI, Certified
Practising Valuer and Registered Valuer, not related to the Group. The valuer is also a member of Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications and recent experience in valuation of similar properties. The fair value was
determined based on the Open Market Value Approach where a property could be exchanged on the date of the valuation
between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had
each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion.

(iii) S
 ummarised financial information in respect of the Group’s subsidiary that have material non-controlling interests (amounts
below are before intragroup eliminations):
Flacq Associated Stonemasters Limited
2018

2017

Rs’000

Rs’000

Non-current assets

66,771

68,508

Current assets

42,169

29,038

Non current liabilities

(12,853)

(15,533)

Current liabilities

(19,739)

Net assets

76,348

Carrying amount of non-controlling interests

14,868

Financial position

Income

(b) T
 here was no rental income from the investment property for the Company in 2018 and 2017. Direct operating expenses
attributable to the development of the investment property for the year ended 30 June 2018 amounted to Rs 80,500 (2017: Nil).

THE COMPANY
2018

2017

Rs’000

Rs’000

88,181

90,437

Unquoted investment at fair value
At 1 July
Disposal during the year

-

(3,631)

Transfer to investment in securities (Note 9)

-

(1,369)

Increase in fair value
At 30 June

6,602

2,744

94,783

88,181

(i) In assessing the fair value of the investment in subsidiary, Flacq Associated Stonemasters Limited at 30 June 2018, the
Company has used discounted cash flows method of valuation with a WACC of 13.13% and long term growth rate of 3.5% p.a.
(2017: earnings method of valuation). The change in method is explained by sufficiently reliable budgets and forecasts obtained
which were not available in prior year. The Directors consider that the carrying value at 30 June 2018 approximates the fair value.

(73,138)

Profit for the year

14,869

7,434

Holding
2018

Flacq Associated Stonemasters Limited

Production and sale of
aggregates and bricks

Mauritius

81%

2017

81%

757

(697)

15,626

6,737

Profit allocated to non-controlling interests

2,894

1,448

Total comprehensive income allocated to non-controlling interests

3,042

1,312

22,604

19,954

Cash flows
Net cash inflow from operating activities
Net cash outflow from investing activities

(5,645)

(5,513)

Net cash outflow from financing activities

(15,148)

(12,257)

1,811

2,184

Net cash inflow

8. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
THE GROUP

(ii) Details of the subsidiary:
Country of incorporation

80,572

(91,066)

Total comprehensive income

7. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

105,935

Expenses
Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Activity

14,565

Comprehensive income

The fair value is categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

Name

(7,218)
74,795

2018

2017

Rs’000

Rs’000

At 1 July

-

37,388

Share of loss

-

(30,608)

Impairment losses

-

(6,780)

At 30 June

-

-

THE COMPANY
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2018

2017

Rs’000

Rs’000

At 1 July

-

37,388

Impairment losses

-

(37,388)

Fair value movement

9,998

-

At 30 June

9,998

-
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8. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

9. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES
THE GROUP & COMPANY

(i) Details of each of the Group’s and the Company’s associates at the end of the reporting period, are as follows:
Name

Activity

Country of incorporation

2018

2017

Rs’000

Rs’000

Available-for-sale investments

201,403

226,905

Held-to-maturity investments

111,518

-

312,921

226,905

284,870

226,905

Holding
2018

2017

PL Resort Ltd

Hotel Operator

Mauritius

40%

40%

Haute Rive Azuri Hotel Ltd

Hotel Operator

Mauritius

21%

21%

The above associates are accounted at their fair values at company level and using equity accounting at group level.

Analysed as:

The fair values of the associates at company level have been determined using discounted cash flows methods with a WACC of
12.43% and long term growth rate of 3.5% p.a. (2017: Net asset value method). The change in method is explained by sufficiently
reliable budgets and forecasts obtained which were not available in prior year.

Current Assets

The financial year-end date of both associates is 30 June. For the purpose of applying the equity method accounting, the financial
statements of these associates for the year ended 30 June 2018 and 2017 have been used.

Available-for-sale investments at fair value

Non-Current Assets

Official
market
Rs’000

The Company has pledged its shares in the associated companies to secure the banking facilities of these associated companies.
At 1 July 2016

Current Non-current
assets
assets
Rs’000
Rs’000

Current
liabilities
Rs’000

Disposals

Noncurrent
liabilities
Rs’000

Revenue
Rs’000

Total
comprehensive
income
for the year
Rs’000

Loss for
the year
Rs’000

2018
PL Resort Ltd

56,906

439,192

207,714

300,114

191,368

(8,950)

(8,652)

Haute Rive Azuri Hotel Ltd

68,714

772,321

664,173

190,583

253,252

(46,012)

(46,056)

PL Resort Ltd

42,261

443,022

167,380

320,981

153,911

(31,112)

(31,958)

Haute Rive Azuri Hotel Ltd

54,367

782,533

380,804

423,761

217,534

(89,617)

(90,875)

2017

(iii) R
 econciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in associates recognised
in the consolidated financial statements:
THE GROUP

226,905

THE GROUP & COMPANY

The investment in PL Resort Ltd and Haute Rive Azuri Hotel Ltd have been fully impaired in prior year following recurring losses
incurred by them.

(ii) Summarised financial information in respect of the associates are as follows:

28,051
312,921

120,653

Unquoted
Rs’000

26,418

147,404

Total
Rs’000
294,475

(3,990)

(92,453)

(96,443)

29,118

1,326

5,924

36,368

Transfer from investment in subsidiary (Note 7)

-

-

1,369

1,369

Impairment

-

-

(8,864)

(8,864)

149,771

23,754

Increase in fair value

At 30 June 2017
Disposals
Increase in fair value
Impairment
At 30 June 2018

-

Second
market
Rs’000

(17,681)

-

3,988

638

-

-

136,078

24,392

53,380

226,905

(19,501)

(37,182)

7,574

12,200

(520)
40,933

(520)
201,403

Available-for-sale investments comprise principally of listed and unquoted securities. The fair value of listed SEM and DEM
quoted available-for-sale securities is based on the Stock Exchange prices at the close of business on reporting date. In assessing
the fair value of unquoted available-for-sale securities and securities having an illiquid market, the Group uses multiple valuation
methodologies depending on the characteristics of each investment including earnings method of valuation and recent
transaction price between unrelated parties. Some investments have been valued based on valuation reports from professional
asset managers. All the valuation methodologies have been consistent with prior year. The Group makes assumptions that are
based on market conditions existing at each reporting date.
In the absence of an active market, some investments have been measured at cost less impairment. One investment has been
fully impaired for an amount of Rs 520,039 due to recurring losses and no viable turnaround plan to date. In 2017, impairment
losses on available-for-sale investments amounted to Rs 8,864,864.

Unrecognised
share of loss
Rs’000

Cumulative
unrecognised
share of loss
Rs’000

PL Resort Ltd

(3,461)

(4,692)

Haute Rive Azuri Hotel Ltd

(2,877)

(2,877)

2018

2017

(6,338)

(7,569)

Rs’000

Rs’000

Interest in
associates
Rs’000

Unrecognised
share of loss
Rs’000

28,051

-

83,467

-

111,518

-

2018

Held-to-maturity investments at amortised cost

Ownership
interest
%

Net assets
Rs’000

Share of net
assets
Rs’000

Impairment
Rs’000

2017
PL Resort Ltd

40.00%

-

-

Haute Rive Azuri Hotel Ltd

20.97%

32,336

6,780

(6,780)

-

32,336

6,780

(6,780)

-
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-

-

(1,231)
(1,231)

THE GROUP & COMPANY

Bank of Mauritius Treasury Bills (i)
Government of Mauritius Notes (ii)

(i) T
 he Company has invested in treasury bills on 28 June 2018 having a nominal value of Rs 29,000,000 and maturity date of
31 May 2019.
(ii) T
 he Company has invested in notes on 21 June 2018 having a nominal value of Rs 83,000,000 and maturity date of
24 April 2021.
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10. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
THE GROUP & COMPANY
2018

2017

Rs’000

Rs’000

-

-

153

-

At 1 July
Deferred tax credit (Note 19)
Underprovision of deferred tax liability in previous year (Note 19)

(54)

-

At 30 June

99

-

At 1 July 2016
& 30 June 2017
Rs’000

Credit/(charge)
to profit or loss
Rs’000

Credit to other
comprehensive
income
Rs’000

At 30 June
2018
Rs’000

Deferred tax asset
Retirement benefit obligations

-

144

-

144

Deferred tax liabilities
Accelerated tax depreciation

-

(45)

-

(45)

-

99

-

99

12. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)
Other receivables for the Group and the Company include an amount of Rs 14,674,279 attributable to an investment maturing
on 30 June 2018 for which redemption proceeds have been received after the reporting date. Accordingly, the redemption of this
investment has not been included in the statements of cash flows.
Loans to associated companies of Rs 28,309,773 (2017: Rs 24,860,338) for the Company and the Group are unsecured, bear
interest at MCB PLR + (2.5% - 5%) and are repayable on or before 31 March 2019. The loans to associates are net of provision for
impairment of Rs 11,810,290 (2017: Rs 11,810,290).
The amount due from the fellow subsidiary includes an amount of Rs 17,173,656 (2017: Rs 374,034) for the Group which is
unsecured, bears interest at 4.7% - 5.2% p.a. (2017: 5.2% - 5.6% p.a.) and is repayable on demand. The remaining amounts due
from related companies are unsecured, interest free and does not have any fixed terms of repayment.
The average credit period on sales of goods is 2 months. Allowance for doubtful debts is normally determined by the subsidiary
as a specific provision made on a case to case basis. No interest is charged on the trade receivables.
Before accepting any new customer, the subsidiary’s Credit Control Department assesses the credit quality of the customer and
defines the terms and credit limits accordingly.
Ageing of past due but not impaired
THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

11. INVENTORIES, AT COST
60 - 90 days

THE GROUP

Raw materials
Finished goods

12. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

2018

2017

Rs’000

Rs’000

514

328

8,461

12,531

8,975

12,859

15,874
(5,338)

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

9,792

-

-

(5,790)

-

-

4,002

-

-

Other receivables

36,404

22,785

18,320

12,625

Loan to associated companies

28,310

24,860

28,310

24,860

75,250

51,647

46,630

37,485
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141

-

-

552

1,321

-

-

2,323

1,462

-

-

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
THE GROUP
2017

2018

2017

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

5,790

4,989

-

-

-

976

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Provision for doubtful debts for the year
Amount recovered during the year
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible
At 30 June

THE COMPANY

2018

(395)
(56)
5,339

(175)
5,790

The age of impaired receivables is more than 1 year.
In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivable
from the date the credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the
customer base being large and unrelated. Accordingly, the directors believe that there is no further credit provision required in
excess of the allowance for doubtful debts.

THE GROUP & COMPANY

THE COMPANY

THE GROUP

Associated companies

1,771

13. STATED CAPITAL

Trade and other receivables include amounts due by:

Related companies

Total

At 1 July
THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

10,536

Fellow subsidiary

90 -120 days

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

2018

2017

2018

2017

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

17,716

10,260

-

-

317

512

-

-

28,310

24,860

28,310

24,860

46,343

35,632

28,310

24,860

2018

2017

Rs’000

Rs’000

8,821

8,821

Issued and fully paid
8,820,947 ordinary shares of Rs 1 each

Fully paid ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry the rights to dividends.
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14. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

14. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT’D)

The liability relates to employees who are entitled to Retirement Gratuities payable under the Employment Rights Act (ERA). The
latter provides for a lump sum at retirement based on final salary and years of service. For employees who are members of the
Defined Contribution plan or Defined Benefit plan, half of any lumpsum and 5 years of pension (relating to Employer’s share of
contributions only) payable from the pension fund have been offset from the Retirement Gratuities.

(a) Retirement gratuities - Under the Employment Rights Act 2008 (Cont’d)
The principal actuarial assumptions used for accounting purposes were:
THE GROUP
2018
2017
%
%

(a) Retirement gratuities - Under the Employment Rights Act 2008
The amounts recognised in the statements of financial position are as follows:
THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000
Retirement gratuities

6,379

6,844

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000
849

-

Discount rate
Future salary increases

THE COMPANY

2018

2017

2018

2017

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

At 1 July

6,844

5,783

-

-

Amount recognised in profit or loss

1,489

644

849

-

839

-

-

-

-

849

-

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

(913)

Retirement benefits paid

(1,041)

At 30 June

6,379

(422)
6,844

6.0 - 6.7

-

3.5

4.0

-

THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

Decrease in retirement gratuities due to 1% increase in discount rate

433

302

174

-

Increase in retirement gratuities due to 1% increase in future long-term salary

504

336

217

-

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on possible changes of the discount rate and future salary increase
occurring at the end of the reporting period if all other assumptions remained unchanged.

(b) State pension plan

Movement in the present value of the retirement gratuities in the current year were as follows:
THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000
At 1 July

6.0

4.0

The expected employer contributions for the year ending 30 June 2019 is nil.

Sensitivity analysis

Rs’000

6.0 - 6.7

The above figures are based on computation made by Swan Life Ltd (Actuarial Consultants) at 30 June 2018.

Movement in the liability recognised in the statements of financial position:
THE GROUP

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
%
%

THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000
National pension scheme contributions expensed

501

359

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000
104

56

6,844

5,783

-

-

Current service cost

657

264

398

-

Interest cost

381

380

-

-

15. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE

Past service cost

451

-

451

-

-

-

839

-

-

Finance lease relate to earth moving machinery with lease term of 5 years. The Group has the option to purchase the asset for
a nominal amount at the conclusion of the lease agreement. The Group’s obligations under finance lease are secured by the
lessor’s title to the leased asset.

6,844

849

-

Retirement benefits paid
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation
At 30 June

(1,041)
(913)
6,379

(422)

The amounts recognised in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as follows:
THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

THE GROUP
THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

Current service cost

657

264

398

-

Interest cost

381

380

-

-

451

-

451

1,489

644

849

Past service cost
Amount recognised in profit or loss

Finance lease liabilities

-

2018
Rs’000

2017
Rs’000

2018
Rs’000

2017
Rs’000

Within one year

1,418

1,418

1,170

1,085

After one year and before two years

1,418

1,418

1,260

1,170

After two years and before three years

1,478

1,418

1,418

1,260

After three years and before five years

-

1,479

-

1,418

4,314

5,733

3,848

4,933

-

-

3,848

4,933

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial loss/(gain) recognised

(1,295)

685

-

-

Less: Future finance charges
Present value of minimum lease payments

Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme

384

154

-

-

Amount recognised in total comprehensive income

578

1,483

849

-
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Present value of
minimum lease
payments

Minimum lease
payments

(466)
3,848

(800)
4,933
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15. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE (CONT’D)

17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in the financial statements as:

THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

2018
Rs’000

2017
Rs’000

Current liabilities

1,170

1,085

Trade payables

Non-current liabilities

2,678

3,848

Other payables and accruals

3,848

4,933

Obligation under finance lease bear interest at a rate 7.5% p.a. (2017: 7.5% p.a.).

10,626

2,543

-

-

7,277

6,638

2,997

3,046

17,903

9,181

2,997

3,046

Trade and other payables include amount due to:
THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

Fair value
The fair value of the finance lease liabilities is approximately equal to their carrying amount.
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Holding company

The table below details changes in the Company’s liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financial activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Related companies

Fellow subsidiaries

At 1 July
2017
Rs’000
Obligation under finance lease

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

Financing
cash flows (i)
Rs’000

4,933

At 30 June
2018
Rs’000

(1,085)

3,848

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

-

13

-

13

12,180

3,104

127

51

-

90

-

90

12,180

3,207

127

154

The average credit period on purchases is one month. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that
all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.
The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

18. BANK OVERDRAFT

(i) The cash flows from obligation under finance lease make up the repayment of finance lease in the statements of cash flows.

The bank overdraft at floating interest rate was secured by a floating charge on the Group’s movable and immovable assets.

16. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

19. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method at 17% (2017: 17%).
The movement on the deferred tax is as follows:

Income tax is calculated at the rate of 15% (2017: 15%) on the profit for the year as adjusted for income tax purposes and
Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) of 2% (2017: 2%).
THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

At 1 July

4,840

Deferred tax (credit)/expense (Note 19)

(351)

Underprovision in deferred tax in previous year (Note 19)

-

Charged/(credited) to other comprehensive income

156

At 30 June

4,645

3,857
611

Corporate Social Responsibility
The Company is required to set up a Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) fund equivalent to 2% of its chargeable income of the
preceding year to implement a CSR programme in accordance with its own CSR framework. Where the amount paid out of the
CSR fund is less than the amount provided under the fund, the difference shall be remitted to the Director-General at the time
of submission of the income tax return of the year under review.

514
(142)
4,840

The deffered tax is attributable to the following items:
At 1 July
2016
Rs’000
Deferred tax asset
Retirement benefit
obligations

Deferred tax liabilities
Accelerated tax
depreciation

72

(869)

Charge
Charge/
to other
(credit) to comprehensive
profit or loss
income
Rs’000
Rs’000
(154)

4,726

1,279

3,857

1,125
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(142)

(142)

At 30 June
2017
Rs’000
(1,165)

Charge/
(credit) to
profit or loss
Rs’000
70

Credit to other
comprehensive
income
Rs’000
155

At 30 June
2018
Rs’000
(940)

6,005

(420)

-

5,585

4,840

(350)

155

4,645
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19. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

21. INVESTMENT INCOME
THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

Statements of financial position
THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000
At 1 July

979

(422)

Under provision in income tax in previous year

275
64

Refund during the year
Income tax paid during the year

(1,318)

Provision for the year

4,673

Tax paid under APS
At 30 June

(895)
3,778

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000
1,057

403

19

261

-

-

-

-

402
2,163
(1,183)
979

(1,318)
944

Dividend income

8,832

16,948

20,157

26,007

Interest on loan to associates

3,449

3,231

3,449

3,231

Interest on fixed-income securities

1,254

1,278

1,254

1,278

13,535

21,457

24,860

30,516

(403)
1,057

-

-

944

1,057

22. OTHER NET OPERATING INCOME

Analysed as follows:
Tax refundable
Tax payable

-

(78)

-

-

3,778

1,057

944

1,057

3,778

979

944

1,057

Statements of profit or loss
THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000
Provision for the year
Under provision in income tax in previous year

4,673

2,163

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000
944

1,057

275

19

261

Underprovision in deferred tax in previous year (Notes 10 and 16)

54

514

54

-

CSR contribution

88

54

88

54

Deferred tax movement (Notes 10 and 16)
Tax expense

(504)
4,586

611
3,361

(153)
1,194

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

(Loss)/profit on disposal of available-for-sale investments
Reclassification to profit or loss on disposal of available-for-sale securities

-

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

(3,577)

219

(3,577)

219

(391)

77,872

(391)

77,872

Profit on disposal of subsidiary

-

1,009

-

169

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment

-

305

-

-

268

107

-

-

16,121

4,086

16,121

4,086

Transport income
Gain on fair value of investment property
Exchange gain

38

71

38

71

Bad debts recovered

395

-

-

-

Sundry income

645

59

25

-

13,499

83,728

12,216

82,417

-

1,111

THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

23. FINANCE INCOME
Finance income relates to interest received on placement of cash and cash equivalents.

Tax reconciliation
THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

32,943

49,226

26,009

47,936

Tax calculated at a rate of 17% (2017: 17%)

5,600

8,368

4,422

8,149

Income not subject to tax

(4,316)

(23,162)

(6,174)

(18,334)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

2,797

12,654

2,455

11,383

54

514

54

-

Underprovision/(overprovision) in income tax in previous year

275

19

261

-

CSR adjustment

176

Profit before tax

Underprovision in deferred tax in previous year

Share of loss of associates

(235)

176

24. FINANCE COSTS
THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000
Interest on finance lease
Interest on overdrafts

2

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

411

-

-

333

4

-

-

335

415

-

-

(87)

-

5,203

-

-

4,586

3,361

1,194

1,111

20. DIVIDENDS
On 21 May 2018, the Board of Directors of the Company declared a dividend of Rs 0.66 per share which was paid on 29 June 2018.
The amount paid was Rs 5,821,825 (2017: Nil).
Dividend of Rs 2,738,500 (2017: Rs 2,190,800), representing non-controlling interest share, was paid at Group level.
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25. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)
THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

THE COMPANY
Holding
Company

Profit for the year is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
Impairment losses recognised on trade receivables

(395)

976

-

-

Provision for impairment of loans to associates

-

11,810

-

11,810

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

8,209

7,891

98

15

Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment losses on available-for-sale investments
Impairment losses on investments in associates
Cost of inventories recognised as expense
Pension costs
Staff costs (excluding pension cost)

2018
Rs’000

Fellow
subsidiaries

Subsidiaries

2017
Rs’000

2018
Rs’000

2017
Rs’000

2018
Rs’000

Related
companies

Associated
companies

2017
Rs’000

2018
Rs’000

2017
Rs’000

2018
Rs’000

2017
Rs’000

57

64

-

-

Balances
Bank balance with
related party

-

-

-

-

-

-

5,424

18,107

-

-

520

8,864

520

8,864

Amount due from

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

28,310

24,860

Amount due to

-

13

-

-

127

51

-

90

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

111,512

-

-

-

-

6,780

-

37,388

35,337

27,138

-

-

1,582

868

1,185

224

18,038

11,167

4,683

3,590

26. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit after tax attributable to owners of the Company
Number of equity shares in issue - ordinary shares
Earnings per share (in Rs)

Transactions
Purchase of securities
Purchase of goods
and services

-

41

-

-

273

108

159

751

-

-

Director fees

225

143

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Professional fees

414

272

-

-

460

544

-

-

-

-

THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

Finance and interest income

2,990

3,072

-

-

1,645

596

124

18

3,449

3,230

Dividend paid

2,035

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

25,463

44,469

Dividend income

-

-

11,324

9,059

-

-

-

-

-

-

8,820,947

8,820,947

2.89

5.04

The terms and conditions of related party transactions have been disclosed in Notes 12 and 17.
Compensation of key management personnel

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key management during the year are as follows:
THE GROUP
Holding Company
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

Fellow subsidiaries
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

Related companies
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

Associated companies
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

Balances
Bank balance with related party

-

-

-

-

5,424

18,107

-

-

Amount due from

-

-

17,716

10,260

317

512

28,310

24,860

Amount due to

-

13

12,180

3,104

-

90

-

-

Short term benefits
Post employment benefit

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

3,875

3,688

3,761

173

207

173

3,544
207

4,048

3,895

3,934

3,751

Transactions
Purchase of securities

-

-

-

-

111,512

-

-

-

Purchase of goods and services

-

41

18,780

20,866

748

751

-

-

Management fees

-

-

4,321

2,421

-

-

-

-

Sale of goods and services

-

-

9,823

583

243

1,782

-

-

414

272

559

640

-

-

-

-

Finance and interest income

2,990

3,072

2,433

596

124

18

3,449

3,230

Dividend paid

2,035

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Professional fees

76

THE BEE EQUITY PARTNERS LTD | ANNUAL REPORT 2018

THE BEE EQUITY PARTNERS LTD | ANNUAL REPORT 2018

77

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 30 June 2018

Year Ended 30 June 2018

28. SEGMENT INFORMATION

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

IFRS 8 - Operating Segments, requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of
the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operation decision maker in order to allocate resources to the segments and
to assess their performance.

Capital risk management

Products and services from which reportable segments derive their revenues
• Information reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker is more specifically focused on these business segments.
• No secondary reporting format by geographical segments is presented as all the activities of the Group are based in Mauritius.
• The Group does not have major customers.

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement
and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and
equity instrument are disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements.

Segment revenue and segment results

2018
Rs’000
Revenue

103,864

2017
Rs’000

2018
Rs’000

2017
Rs’000

79,557

24,860

30,516

(11,325)

(9,059)

-

-

(56,495)

Administrative expenses

(17,135)

(13,978)

Impairment losses on investments

1,283

432

-

-

Finance income

788

583

Finance costs

(335)

(415)

Share of loss of associates
Provision for impairment of loans
to associates
Profit before tax

Total

2018
Rs’000

(70,206)

Other net operating income

Consolidation
adjustments

Investments

2017
Rs’000

Operating expenses

-

-

2018
Rs’000

2017
Rs’000

117,399

101,014

(70,206)

(56,495)

Cash and cash equivalents

(15,307)

(11,347)

-

-

(32,442)

(25,325)

Loans and receivables

12,216

83,296

-

-

13,499

83,728

Investment in subsidiary

(15,644)

Investment in associates

(520)
4,760

(15,644)

-

-

4,198

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(30,608)
(11,810)

-

-

-

18,259

9,684

26,009

48,601

(11,325)

(9,059)

(520)
5,548

4,781

(335)

(415)

-

(30,608)

-

(11,810)

32,943

49,226

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

67,412

143,785

62,838

141,850

51,651

46,630

37,485

-

94,783

88,181

75,250
-

-

9,998

-

Available-for-sale financial assets

201,403

226,905

201,403

226,905

Held-to-maturity financial assets

111,518

-

111,518

-

455,583

422,341

527,170

494,421

17,903

8,442

2,997

3,036

3,848

4,933

-

-

828

-

-

-

22,579

13,375

2,997

3,036

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables
Obligation under finance lease
Bank overdraft

Financial risk management
Building materials

Consolidation
adjustments

Investments

2018
Rs’000

2017
Rs’000

2018
Rs’000

2017
Rs’000

66,771

68,508

452,445

361,758

The Group operates a Corporate Treasury function which provides services to the sectors of activity within the Group. It also
manages the Group’s exposure to market risk (including currency risk, equity price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Total

2018
Rs’000

2017
Rs’000

(104,780)

(88,181)

2018
Rs’000

2017
Rs’000

414,436

342,085

179,688

208,369

594,124

550,454
15,532

Assets
42,169

29,034

137,519

179,335

108,940

97,542

589,964

541,093

-

Non-current liabilities

12,853

15,532

849

-

-

-

13,702

Current liabilities

19,739

7,220

3,940

4,103

-

-

23,679

11,323

32,592

22,752

4,789

4,103

-

-

37,381

26,855

Additions to non-current assets

6,432

6,361

-

537

-

-

6,432

6,898

Depreciation and amortisation

8,167

7,940

98

15

-

-

8,265

7,955

(104,780)

(88,181)

Liabilities

78

THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000
Financial assets

-

Segment assets and liabilities

Current assets

Categories of financial instruments:

-

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies as described in Note 3.
This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.

Non-current assets

The capital structure of the Group and the Company consist of debt net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings.
Significant accounting policies

The Group’s reportable segments under IFRS 8 are as follows:

Building materials

The Group and the Company manage their capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s and the
Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged for 2018.

THE BEE EQUITY PARTNERS LTD | ANNUAL REPORT 2018

The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.
Market risk
The Group’s activities expose itself primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates
and equity price. The Group manages its exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk by use of a proper mix in fixed and
floating rate borrowings and use of natural hedging.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Foreign currency risk management

Interest rate risk management

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies. Hence, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as entities in the Group borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates.

The currency profile of the financial assets and financial liabilities is summarised as follows:

The interest rate profile of the Group at 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017 was:

THE GROUP
Financial
assets
Rs’000

Currency

THE COMPANY

Financial
liabilities
Rs’000

Financial
assets
Rs’000

Financial
liabilities
Rs’000

Floating Interest rate
2018
Rs’000

2017
Rs’000

Financial assets

2018

Loan to associated companies

MUR

MCB PLR + (2.5% - 5%)

MCB PLR + (2.5% - 5%)

Currency

Amounts due from related parties

MUR

4.7% - 5.2%

5.2% - 5.6%

Bank overdrafts

MUR

PLR +1.00%

PLR + 1.00%

Obligation under finance lease

MUR

7.50%

7.50%

Mauritian rupee

440,876

United States dollar
Euro

22,579

512,463

2,997

14,692

-

14,692

-

15

-

15

-

455,583

22,579

527,170

2,997

Financial liabilities

2017

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Currency
Mauritian rupee
United States dollar
Euro

408,027

13,375

480,107

3,036

14,299

-

14,299

-

15

-

15

-

422,341

13,375

494,421

3,036

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the Mauritian rupee against the relevant
foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. A negative number below indicates a decrease in
profit and other equity where the Mauritian rupee strengthens 10% against the relevant currency. For a 10% weakening of the
Mauritian rupee against the relevant currency there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit and other equity, and
the balances below would be positive.

THE GROUP
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

THE COMPANY
2018
2017
Rs’000
Rs’000

(1,469)

(1,469)

US Dollar impact
(1,430)

(1,430)

Euro impact
Total comprehensive income

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher or lower, the Group’s profit for the year ended 30 June 2018 would decrease/
increase by Rs 303,844 (2017: decrease/increase by Rs 288,813). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable rate borrowings. The impact on the Company’s profit for the year would be insignificant.
Other price risks
The Group and the Company are exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments which are traded on the stock
markets. The Directors monitor the portfolio mix on a regular basis to mitigate the risks arising on these investments.
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date.

Impact of a 10% appreciation of the Mauritian Rupee:

Total comprehensive income

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates changes at the reporting date.
For floating rate liabilit§ies, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the reporting date was
outstanding for the whole year.

(2)

(2)

(2)

The above is mainly attributable to the exposure in relation to the net working capital and investment in foreign currencies.

(2)

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower:
• net profit for the year ended 30 June 2018 would have been unaffected as the equity investments are classified as availablefor-sale; and
• other comprehensive income and fair value reserves would increase/decrease by Rs 16,047,001 for the Group and the
Company (2017: increase/decrease by Rs 17,352,500 for the Group and the Company) as a result of the changes in fair value
of available-for-sale investments.
Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group.
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Group uses publicly available financial information
and its own trading records to rate its major customers. The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are
continuously monitored.
Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. Ongoing
credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable.
The Group does not have any significant concentration of risks. The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial
statements, which is net of impairment losses, represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account
of the value of any collateral obtained.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Liquidity risk management

Fair value of financial instruments (Cont’d)

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, who monitors the Group’s short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
The following tables detail the Group’s and the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group and the Company can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

2017
Available-for-sale investments

Total
Rs’000

173,525

51,860

225,385

Level 1

2018

2017

Rs’000

Rs’000

Investment in subsidiary
Available-for-sale investments

THE GROUP

Variable interest rate instruments

THE GROUP
Level 3
Rs’000

THE COMPANY

Less than 1 year

Non-interest bearing

Level 1
Rs’000

17,903

8,442

3,848

4,933

21,751

13,375

2,997

3,046

THE COMPANY

Level 3

Total

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

-

88,181

88,181

173,525

51,860

225,385

173,525

140,041

313,566

The reconciliation of Level 3 and the transfer between Level 1 and Level 3 have been disclosed in Notes 7 and 9.
The unobservable inputs involved in the determination of fair value for Level 3 investments include discount factors in respect of
lack of marketability, lack of control and size, by reference to the share price of listed entities in similar industries. Each discount
factor applied ranged between 10% and 30%. A higher/lower discount factor will result in a lower/higher fair value.
Unquoted investments valued at cost amounting to Rs 1,000,000 (2017: Rs 1,520,039) have been excluded from Level 3.

Non-interest bearing
Variable interest rate instruments

-

-

2,997

3,046

30. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE
There has been no material event after the reporting date which requires disclosure or adjustment to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018.

Fair value of financial instruments
Except where stated elsewhere, the carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities
approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of the balances involved.
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value
on a recurring basis. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques.

2018
Available-for-sale investments

Level 1
Rs’000

THE GROUP
Level 3
Rs’000

Total
Rs’000

160,470

39,933

200,403

31. HOLDING COMPANY
The immediate and ultimate holding company is IBL Ltd, incorporated in Mauritius. Its registered address is 4th Floor, IBL House,
Caudan Waterfront, Port Louis.

32. COMPARATIVES
During the current year, management reassessed the classification and presentation of certain account balances in the financial
statements. Accordingly, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation. There is
neither any effect on the result for the year in the comparative statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income nor
on the assets and liabilities in the comparative statements of financial position.

THE COMPANY

Investment in subsidiary
Investment in associates
Available-for-sale investments
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Level 1

Level 3

Total

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

-

94,783

94,783

-

9,998

9,998

160,470

39,933

200,403

160,470

144,714

305,184
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NOTICE OF
ANNUAL MEETING

ANNEXURE 1

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Meeting of the Shareholders of The Bee Equity Partners Ltd will be held at 6th Floor,
IBL House, Caudan Waterfront, Port Louis on Friday, 23 November 2018 at 9.30 hours to transact the following business in the
manner required for the passing of the following RESOLUTIONS:

STÉPHANE HENRY (Mr.)

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS:
1.
2.
3.
4.

To consider the Annual Report;
To receive the report of the Auditors;
To consider and adopt the Group’s and Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018;
To elect, as Director of the Company, Mr. Madhukar Gujadhur1 who has been nominated by the Board and who offers
himself for election;
5. To elect, as Director of the Company, Mr. Denis-Claude Pilot1 who has been nominated by the Board and who offers himself
for election;
6. To elect, as Director of the Company, Mr. Sattar Jackaria1 who has been nominated by the Board and who offers himself for
election;
7. To elect, as Director of the Company, Mr. Stéphane Henry2 who has been nominated by the Board and who offers himself
for election;
8. To re-elect by rotation, on the recommendation of the Board, Mr. Jan Boullé1 who offers himself for re-election as Director
of the Company;
9. To re-elect by rotation, on the recommendation of the Board, Mr. Olivier Fayolle1 who offers himself for re-election as
Director of the Company;
10. To fix the remuneration of the Directors for the financial year ending 30 June 2019 and to ratify the emoluments paid to the
Directors for the financial year ended 30 June 2018;
11. To appoint Messrs. Ernst & Young as Auditors for the ensuing year and to authorise the Board of Directors to fix their
remuneration; and
12. To ratify the emoluments paid to Messrs. Deloitte for the financial year ended 30 June 2018.

By order of the Board

Resident of Mauritius

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
APPOINTED ON:
1 October 2018

QUALIFICATION:
Mr. Henry holds three years of « Classe Préparatoire aux Grandes Ecoles » from Bordeaux, France, a Master I degree in Business,
Administration and Finance from DESCAF – Ecole Supérieure de Commerce de Pau, France and a Master II degree in Wealth
Management - DESS Gestion de Patrimoine, from the University of Clermont-Ferrand, France.

PROFESSIONAL JOURNEY:
Since March 2005, Mr. Henry is the CEO and Director of Investment Professionals Ltd, a subsidiary of Ciel Finance Ltd.
The IPRO Group has in excess of USD300M of Assets Under Management, with offices in Mauritius and Botswana. He
previously worked at Premium Asset Management Ltd in Mauritius as Consultant from 1995 to 1998 and as Managing Director
from 1998 to 2004.
Between 2003 and 2017, he was the Independent Director of India Fund Inc (IFN), a USD800M closed-end investment fund listed
on the New York Stock Exchange. IFN has a majority of independent Directors who govern the fund.

BOARD MEMBERSHIPS AND AFFILIATIONS:
• Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) Ltd
• IPRO Growth Fund Ltd
• P.O.L.I.C.Y. Limited
• The Bee Equity Partners Ltd

DORIS DARDANNE
Per IBL Management Ltd
Company Secretary
21 September 2018

Footnote 1: The Directors’ profiles are set out on pages 6 and 7.
Footnote 2: The Profile of Mr. Stéphane Henry who has been nominated by the Board with effect 1 October 2018 is set out in Annexure 1
on page 87.

NOTES:
i.

 Shareholder of the Company entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint a proxy of his/her own choice (whether a Shareholder or
A
not) to attend and vote on his/her behalf. The instrument appointing a proxy or any general power of attorney shall be deposited at the Share
Registry and Transfer Office, Ocorian Corporate Administrators Limited (formerly known as Abax Corporate Administrators Ltd), 6th Floor, Tower A,
1 CyberCity, Ebène not less than twenty four hours before the time appointed for the holding of the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the
person named on such instrument proposes to vote, and in default, the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.
ii. A proxy form is included in this Annual Report and is also available at the Share Registry and Transfer Office of the Company.
iii. For the purpose of this Annual Meeting, the Directors have resolved, in compliance with Section 120(3) of the Companies Act 2001, that the
shareholders who are entitled to receive notice of the meeting shall be those shareholders whose names are registered in the share register of the
Company as at 29 October 2018.
iv. The minutes of the Annual Meeting to be held on 23 November 2018 will be available for consultation and comments during office hours at the
registered office of the Company, 4th Floor, IBL House, Caudan Waterfront, Port Louis from 4 February to 14 February 2019.
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DIRECTORATE
AND ADMINISTRATION

PROXY FORM

DIRECTORS

of

Jean Claude Béga - Chairman
Jan Boullé
Olivier Fayolle
Madhukar Gujadhur - Appointed Director on 13 December 2017
Stéphane Henry - Appointed Director on 1 October 2018
Sattar Jackaria - Appointed Director on 28 August 2018
Denis-Claude Pilot - Appointed Director on 13 December 2017

I/We,

being a Shareholder/Shareholders of THE BEE EQUITY PARTNERS LTD, do hereby appoint
of
failing him/her,
of

COMPANY SECRETARY
IBL Management Ltd

failing him/her, the Chairman of the Company, as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual Meeting
of the Company to be held on Friday, 23 November 2018 at 9.30 hours and at any adjournment thereof.

SHARE REGISTRY AND TRANSFER OFFICE

I/We direct my/our proxy to vote in the following manner:

Ocorian Corporate Administrators Limited (formerly known as Abax Corporate Administrators Ltd)
6th Floor, Tower A
1 CyberCity
Ebène

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS:
For

2. To receive the report of the Auditors;

4th Floor, IBL House
Caudan Waterfront
Port Louis

3. T
 o consider and adopt the Group’s and Company’s audited financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2018;

Deloitte

BANKERS
The Mauritius Commercial Bank Limited
AfrAsia Bank Limited

Abstain

1. To consider the Annual Report;

REGISTERED OFFICE

AUDITORS

Against

4. T
 o elect, as Director of the Company, Mr. Madhukar Gujadhur who has been nominated
by the Board and who offers himself for election;
5. T
 o elect, as Director of the Company, Mr. Denis-Claude Pilot who has been nominated by
the Board and who offers himself for election;
6. T
 o elect, as Director of the Company Mr. Sattar Jackaria who has been nominated by the
Board and who offers himself for election;
7. T
 o elect, as Director of the Company Mr. Stéphane Henry who has been nominated by the
Board and who offers himself for election;
8. T
 o re-elect by rotation, on the recommendation of the Board, Mr. Jan Boullé who offers
himself for re-election as Director of the Company;
9. T
 o re-elect by rotation, on the recommendation of the Board, Mr. Olivier Fayolle who
offers himself for re-election as Director of the Company;
10. T
 o fix the remuneration of the Directors for the financial year ending 30 June 2019 and
to ratify the emoluments paid to the Directors for the financial year ended 30 June 2018;
11. T
 o appoint Messrs. Ernst & Young as Auditors for the ensuing year and to authorise the
Board of Directors to fix their remuneration; and
12. To ratify the emoluments paid to Messrs. Deloitte for the financial year ended 30 June 2018.

Signed this

day of

2018

Signature(s)

NOTES:
1.
2.
3.
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 shareholder of the Company entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint a proxy of his/her own choice (whether a shareholder or not)
A
to attend and vote on his/her behalf.
Please mark in the appropriate box how you wish to vote. If no specific direction as to voting is given, the proxy will exercise his/her discretion as to
how he/she votes.
The instrument appointing a proxy or any general power of attorney shall be deposited at the Share Registry and Transfer Office,
Ocorian Corporate Administrators Limited (formerly known as Abax Corporate Administrators Ltd), 6th Floor, Tower A, 1 CyberCity, Ebène, not less than
twenty four hours before the time for the holding of the meeting or else the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.
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Think Green
As part of the IBL Group’s ongoing commitment to sustainability,
The Bee Equity Partners Ltd has chosen to print its annual report on Lenza Green paper.
Lenza Green paper is made from 100% recycled pulp and is Totally Chlorine-free (TCF).
Lenza Green is certified by:
• T
 he Forest Stewardship Council Forestry, an international non-governmental
and non-profit organisation that promotes the responsible management of
the world’s forests
• The EU Ecolabel
• Nordic Swan, the official ecolabel of the Nordic countries
• TÜV Austria, a leading certification and inspection company
Lenza Green’s environmental profile (for both paper and pulp production):
SO2
NOx
CO2 (fossil)
Solid waste landfilled
Electricity consumption

0.54 kg/ton
1.01 kg/ton
76 kg/ton
0.00 BDkg/ton
36 kWh/ton of final product
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